Consolidated financial statements and independent auditors' report
Noor Financial Investment Company — KPSC and Subsidiaries
Kuwait

31 December 2015



Noor Fihancial investment Company - KPSC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2815

Kuwait

Contents

Independent auditors' report

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Consolidated statement of financial position

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Page

Tand 2

6and 7

9 to 66



o GrantThornton | An instinct for growth” De Io i tte °

AlQatami, AFAIban & Partners

Auditors & Consultants Deloitte & Touche

Souq Al-Kabeer Building - Block A Sth Floor Al-Wazzan & Co.

Tel: (965) 2244 3900-9 Ahmed Al-Jaber Street, Sharq

Fax: (965) 2243 8451 Dar Al-Awadi Complex, Floors 7 & 9

P.Q.Box 2086, Safat 13030 P.O. Box 20174 Safat 13062 o

Kuwail
E-mail: gi@kw.gl.com P.O. jBox 23049 Safat 13091
www.grantthornion.com. kw Kuwait

Tel : + 965 22408844, 22438060
Fax: +965 22408855, 22452080
www.deloitte.com

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of Noor
Financial Investment Company KPSC

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Noor Financial Investment
Company — KPSC (the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statements of
profit or loss, profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards adopted for use by the State of
Kuwait and, for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
cffectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of Noor
Financial Investment Company KPSC (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Noor Financial Investment Company — KPSC and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and
their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted for use by the State of Kuwait.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Matters

In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the consolidated
financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors
relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that we
obtained all the information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the
consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No. 1 of
2016, the Executive Regulations of Law No. 25 of 2012, and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of
Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No. 1 of 2016, the Executive
Regulations of Law No. 25 of 2012, or of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles
of Association, as amended, have occurred during the year ended 31 December 2015 that might have had a
material effect on the business or financial position of the Group.

We further report that, during the course of our audit, to the best of our knowledge and belief, we have not
become aware of any material violations, of the provisions of Law No.32 of 1968, as amended, concerning
currency, the Central Bank of Kuwait and the organisation of banking business, and its related regulations or
of the provisions of Law No. 7 of 2010 concerning the Capital Markets Authority and its related regulations
during the year ended 31 December 2015, that might have had a material effect on the business or financial

position of the Group.

Abdullauf M. Al-Aiban (CPA) Talal Yousef Al-Muzaini

(Licence No. 94-A) (Licence No. 209A)

of Grant Thornton — Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners of Deloitte & Touche Al-Wazzan & Co.
Kuwait

31 March 2016
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Noor Financial investment Company - KPSC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2015
Kuwait

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 1 Dec
Mole 2015 2014
KD KD
Revenue from hotel operations and IT Services 15,701,305 13,639,645
Realised gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss 550,494 1,154,046
Unrealised loss on investments at fair value through profit or loss (1,607,280} {151,889)
Realised gain on sale of available for sale investments 1,557,548 1,957,674
Change in fair value of investment properties 19 959,509 1,104,532
Dividend income 2,134,423 1,718,821
Share of results of associates 18 7,165,450 0,842,763
Management and placement fees 1,620,595 54,010
Realised gain on sale of investment properties - 300,000
Rental Income 1,535,047 1,008,259
Total income 29,617,091 30,627,861
Cost of sales and services from hotel operations and IT services 8 {13,408,641) (11,621,585)
General, administrative and other expenses 8 (5,075,212} (5,152,188)
Operating profit 11,133,238 13,854,088
Interest and other income 9 2,561,188 1,040,112
Foreign exchange gain/{loss} 110,242 (58,358)
Finance costs 11 {4,241,042) (4,538,858)
Impairment in value of intangible assels 20 {2,010,441) -
Impairment in value of available for sale investments 17 {8,252,823) (8.671,511)
Impairment in value of investment in associale 18 (389,136) (111,473)
Impairment in value of accounts receivable 16.3 (322,927) (1,436,255)
(Loss)/profit before taxes (1,411,701) 77,744
Provision for Zakat {7,479) (5,899)
Provision for National Labour Support Tax (NLST) {(29,305) (20,052)
(Loss)/profit for the year (1,448,485) 51,793
Attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company 1,333,267 918,814
Non-controlling interests (2,781,752) (867,021)
{1,448,485) 51,793
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (FILS) 12 3.31 2.28

The notes set out on pages 9 to 66 form an integral part of these consoldated financial statements.



Naor Financial Investment Company - KPSC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2015

Kuwait

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec
2015 2014
KD KD
{Loss)/profit for the year (1,448,485) 51,793
Other comprehensive income:
Iltems to be reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences arising from translation of foreign operations {293,540} 3,607,119
Available for sale investments:
-Net changes in fair value arising during the year (7,400,454) (6,601,199}
-Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on sale (1,557,548) {1,957,674)
-Transferred to consolidaled statement of profit or loss on impairment 8,252,823 8,671,511
Share of other comprehensive income/{loss) of associates 258,420 (523,481)
Total other comprehensive {loss)/income for the year {740,299) 3,196,276
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year {2,188,784) 3,248,069
Total comprehensive income/{loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company (1,097,654) 3,994 442
Non-controlling interests {1,091,130) (746,373)
{2,188,784) 3.248,069

The notes set out on pages 9 to 66 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statenents,



Noor Financial Investment Company - KP5C and Subsidiaries

Gonsolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2015
Kuwait

Consolidated statement of financial position

5

31 Dec. 31 Dec
Mote 2015 2014
KD KD
Assets
Cash and bank balances 13 7,737,506 8,137,702
Short term deposits 13 2,613,265 1,570,220
Murabaha and wakala investments 14 1,000,000 598,354
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 15 11,699,191 17,372,642
Accounts receivable and other assets 16 15,266,515 14,293 065
Inventories 884,878 311,100
Available for sale investments 17 43,989,767 58,207,419
Investment in associates 18 53,076,227 50,294,896
Investment properties 19 39,755,699 32,840,512
Property and equipment 4,395,216 6,632,396
Goodwill and intangible assets 20 5,597,375 10,314,660
Total assels 186,015,629 200,572,966
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Due to banks 13 2,016,195 1,508,363
Accounts payable and other liabilities 21 7,568,953 9,932077
Borrowings from banks and other financial institutions 22 111,898,284 124,927,082
Provision for end of service indemnity 592,841 526,243
Total liabilities 122,076,273 136,893,765
Equity
Share capital 23 41,316,276 41,316,276
Share premium 23 3,410,573 3,410,573
Treasury shares 24 {3,410,573) {3,410,573)
Legal reserve 25 1,644,912 1,507,807
Voluntary reserve 25 1,644,912 1,807,907
Cumulative changes in fair value 26 3,848,484 6,009,404
Foreign currency transiation reserve 26 (9,807,539} (9,537,538)
Retained earnings 4,847,152 4,495 457
Equity attributable to the owners of the Parent Company 43,494,197 45,299 413
Non-controlling interests 26 20,445,159 18,379,788
Total equity 63,939,356 63,679,201
Total liabilities and equity 186,015,629 200,572,966

Abdulghan M.S. Behbehani

Vice Chairman

he notes set ont on pages 9 to 66 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Noor Financial Investment Company - KPSC and Subsidiaries B
Consclidated Financial Statements
31 December 2015
Kuwait
Consolidated statement of cash flows
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Wote 2015 2014
KD KD

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
{Loss)/profit before taxes (1,431,701} 77,744
Adjustments:
Realised gain on sale of available for sale investments {1,5657,548) (1,957,674)
Dividend income (2,134,423) (1,718,821}
Realized gain on sale of investment properties - (300,000)
Change in fair value of investment properties {959,509) {1,104,532)
Share of resulls of associales {7,165,450) (9,842,763)
Interast income and income {rom murabaha and wakala investments {37,128) {120,175)
Reversal of impairment provision on amount due from Ultimale Parent Company (2,188,996} -
Depreciation & amortisation 173,277 221,122
Provision for end of service indemnity 182,261 168,452
Finance costs 4,241,042 4,538,858
Impairment in value of accounts receivable 322,927 1,436,255
Impairment in value of available for sale invesiments, investments in associate and

intangible asset 10,652,400 8,782,984

117,152 181,450

Changes In operating assets and liabilities:
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 7,862,847 4,173,198
Accounls receivable and other assels {1,169,585) 9,589,269
Accounis payable and other Habilities 329,758 (946,250}
Inveniories {573,778) 38,440
Cash from operation 6,565,994 13,036,107
Zakat, KFAS and NLST paid {10,267) (474,182)
Payment of end of service indemnity (115,663} (158,556)
Net eash from operating activities 6,440,064 12,403,329
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Change in shori term deposits 13 224,117 (224 117)
Change in blocked deposits 13 1,404,475 (1,363,541)
Proceeds from sale of available for sale investmenis 7,956,774 5,183,253
Purchase of available for sale invesiments {1,139,579) (1,372,221)
investments in associale (50,000) (250,828)
Dividend received from associate 3,883,071 2,480,549
Dividend received from other investments 2,134,423 1,718,821
Acquisition of subsidiaries {nel) 7.3 - (1,005,629)
{Increase)/decrease in Murabaha and Wakala invesiments (401,646) 3,901,646
Acquisition and development of investment property {3,675,288) {3,850,359)
Proceeds from sale of investments properties - 2,100,000
Nel acquisition of property and equipment (194,157} {2,331,704)
Interest income and income from Murabaha & Wakala investments received 37,128 120,175
Net cash from investing activities 10,179,178 5,106,045
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of borrowings (net) {13,028,798) (9,637 668)
Redemption of units by non-controlling interests of a subsidiary {18,779) {137,423)
Payment to non-controlling inlerests on reduction of share capilal by subsidiaries {1,773,557) {4,042,064)
Additional investment made by non-controlling interest in the capital of a subsidiary 4,400,000 2,500
Acquisition of non-controlling interest in a subsidiary - (727,996)
Dividend paid by subsidiary to non-controlling interests {200,400} -
Dividend paid {825} (2,300)
Finance cosls paid (4,233,284} (4,538,588)
Net cash used in financing activities {14,855,643) {19,083,539}
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis 1,763,599 {1.574,165)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 6,245,901 7.820,066
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 13 8,009,500 6,245,901

The notes set out on pages 9 to 66 form an inteoral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Noor Financial Investment Company - KPSC and Subsidiaries x
Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2015

Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Incorporation and activities

Noor Financial Investment Company — KPSC (“the Parent Company”} was incorporated in Kuwait on |
February 1997 and its shares were hsted on the IQuwait Stock Exchange during May 2006. The Parent Company
and 1ts subsidiaries are together referred to as “the Group”. The Parent Company is regulated by the Central
Bank of Kuwait and also by the Capital Market Authority {CMA), as an investment company and 1s a subsidiary
of Nauonal Industries Group Holding SAK (“the Ultimate Parent Company™).

The principal objectives of the Parent Company ate as follows:

- Invest in various economic sectors through establishment of specialized companies or purchase of
shares or stakes in those companies;
Perform the functions of investment trustees and manage all kinds of investment portfolios for third
parties;
Facilitate in lending and borrowing transactions for comrmission or remuneration;

- Fund and factlitate in international trade operations;

- Conduct research, studies and other technical services related to investment operations and manage
funds for third parties;

- Create and manage vanious investment funds according 1o the law,
- Perform the functions of lead manager for the bonds issued by companies and bodies;

Prepare studies and provide financial advice related to investment for privatizaton projects;

- Carry out all the services and acuvities that help developing the financial and monetary market in the
State of Kuwait;

- Trade, by selling and buying, in shares, bonds, Sukuks and other securities listed and unlisted in Kuwait
stock exchange and foreign stock exchanges for the Company’s account or the account of its clients for
COMmIMISSIOn O remuneration;

- Invest in real estate, industrial and agricultural sectors of the economy in all types of instruments;

- Facilitate in selling or buying financial assets and other assets for commission or remuneration;

- Provide funding operations to third parties to buy or lease fixed assets and movables through contracts;

- Provide technical services for the incorporation of companies and restructuring , merger or disposal of
the existing companies;

- Prepare studies and research and provide the necessary consultation in all matrers relating o the
objectives of the company;

- Acquire industrial property rights, patents, trade and industrial marks, literary and intellectual property
rights;

- Represent foreign companies, the objectives of which are identical with the objectives of the company
in order to market their products and services in accordance with the relevant Kuwaiti legislation;

- To act as an investment controller.

During the year, the Shareholding Companies Department of the Ministry of Commerce and Industry has
issued its memorandum number 206 dated 3rd August 2015 based on the sesolution of the Extraordinary
General Assembly held on 27 May 2015, which approved on the basis of the issued approval of the Capital
Markets Authorty, to amend the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Parent Company to include
the objecuve of "Investment Controller”.

The Parent Company has the right to perform the above mentioned activities inside and outside the State of
Kuwait directly or through an agent. The Parent Company may have an interest or parucipate in any aspect with
the entities performing similar works or which might assist it in the achievement of its objectives in Kuwair or
abroad. The Parent Company may also purchase these entues or affilinte them therewith,
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Consoclidated Financial Statements
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Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Incorporation and activities (continued)
Further, the Parent Company may practice works similar or complementary or necessary or related to its above
mentioned objectives and may utlize its surplus funds by investing same in portfolios and funds managed by

specialized companies and bodies.

The new Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 was issued on 24 January 2016 and published in the Official Gazette on
1 February 2016 in which they have cancelled Law No. 25 of 2012 and its amendments thereto, as stipulated in
article (5) thereto. The new Law will be effective retrospectively from 26 November 2012 and the executive
regulations of Law No. 25 of 2012 will remain effective pending the issuance of the new executive regulations.

The address of the Parent Company’s registered office is NIG Building, Ground Floor, Shuwaikh, Kuwait (P. O
Box 3311, Safat 13034, State of Kuwait).

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company approved these consolidated financial statements for issuance
on 31 March 2016. The general assembly of the Parent Company’s sharcholders has the power to amend these
consolidated financial statements after issuance.

2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include the
measurement at fair value of investments at fair value through profit or loss, available for sale financial
investments and investment properties.

As disclosed in Note 22.1, the management of the Parent Company is actively engaged with all its lenders to
restructure its loans and is confident that based on the constructive discussions held to date they will be able to
achieve an acceptable debt rescheduling within a short period of time.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (KD).

The Group has elected to present the “statement of comprehensive income” in two statements: the “statement
of profit or loss” and a “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income”.

3 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), as
modified by the State of Kuwait for financial services institutions regulated by Central Bank of Kuwait.

These regulations require adoption of all IFRS except for the IAS 39 requirement for collective impairment
prov151on which has been replaced by the Central Bank of Kuwait requirement for a minimum general
provision as described under the accounting policy for impairment of financial assets.

4 Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those used in previous year except as discussed below:

4.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group
A number of new and revised standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
Information on these new standards is presented below:

Standard or Interpretation Effective for annunal periods beginning

IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions -Amendments 1 july 2014
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle 1 July 2014
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle 1 July 2014
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
4.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions - Amendments

The Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits clanfy the requirements that relate to how contnbutons from
employees or third parties that are linked to service should be attzibuted to pertods of service. In addition, it
permits a practical expedient if the amount of the contribuuons 1s independent of the number of years of
service, in that contributions, can, but are not required, to be recognised as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the related service 1s rendered.

The above amendment did not have any material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle:

{t) Amendrents to IFRS 3-Contingent consideranon that does not meet the definition of an equity instmment is
subsequently measured at each reporting date fair value, with changes recognised in consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

(i) Amendments to IFRS 13- The addition to the basis for conclusions confirms the existing measurement
treatment of short-term receivables and payables.

{#es) Amendments to IFRS 8- Disclosures are required regarding judgements made by management in aggregaung
operating segments (i.e. description, economic indicators).

A recoaciliation of reportable segments’ assets 1o total entity assets is required if this is regularly provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

(fv} Amendments to LAS 16 and LAS 38- When items are revalued, the gross carrying amouant is adjusted on a
consistent basis to the revaluation of the net carrying amount.

(v) Amendments to LAS 24- Entities that provide key management personnel services to a reporting enuty, or the
teporting entity’s parent, are considered to be related parties of the reporting entity.

The above amendments did not have any material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements,

Annual Improvemnents 2011-2013 Cycle
(£) Amendments to IFRS 1-the amendment to the basis for conclusions clarifies that an enuty preparing s IFRS
financial statements in accordance with IFRS 1 is able to use both:
e [FRSs that are currently effective
e IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective, that permits early adoption
The same version of each IFRS must be applied to all periods presented.

(i) Amendments to IFRS 3- IFRS 3 is not applied to the formation of a joint arrangement in the financial
statements of the joint arrangement itself.

(i) Amendments fo IFRS 13- the scope of the portfolio exemption (IFRS 13.52) includes all items that have
offsetting positions in market and/or counterparty credit risk that are recognised and measured in accordance
with LAS 39/IFRS 9, irrespective of whether they meet the definition of a financial asset/liability.

iv) Almendments to LAS 40 - Clarifying the interrelationship of IFRS 3 and IAS 40 when classifying property as an
Investment property or owner-occupied property
The above amendments did not have any marerial impact to the Group’s consohdated financial statements.
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4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective
At the date of authonsation of these consolidated financaial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been published by the TASB but are not yet effective, and have not

been adopted early by the Group.

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncements. Information on new
standards, amendments and interpretatons that are expected to be relevant o the Group’s financial statements
is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Standard or Interpretation Effective for annal pertods beginning

[FRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 january 2018
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between and an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture — Amendments 1 January 2016
IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisittons of Interests in Jomt Operations —

Amendments 1 January 2016
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
IAS 1 'Disclosure Intiative — Amendments 1 January 2016
IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clanficavon of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation

and Amortisatton — Amendments 1 January 2016

[AS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Staternents — Amendments 1 January 2016
IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Enuties: Applying the

Consolidation Exception ~ Amendments 1 January 2016
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 1 July 2016

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The IASB recently released IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (2014), representing the completon of its project to
replace IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measutement’. The new standard introduces extensive
changes to IAS 39’s guidance on the classification and measurement of financial assets and introduces a new
‘expected credit loss” model for the impairment of financial assets. IFRS 9 also provides new guidance on the
application of hedge accounting.

Management has started to assess the impact of IFRS 9 but i1s not yet in a position to provide quanufied
information. At this stage the main areas of expected impact are as follows:

e the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets will need to be reviewed based on
the new critena that considers the assets’ contractual cash flows and the business model in which they
are managed,

* an expected credit loss-based itnpairment will need to be recognised on the Group's trade receivables
and investments in debt-type assets currently classified as available for sale and held-to-maturity, unless
classified as at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with the new criteria,

* it will no longer be possible to measure equity investments at cost less impawment and all such
investments will instead be measured at fair value. Changes in fair value will be presented in profit or
ioss unless the Group makes an irrevocable designanion to present them in statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. This will affect the Group’s investment amounting to KD2,835,639
{(see note 17.1) 1f sull held on 1 January 2018,
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4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective {continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
* if the Group continues to elect the fair value option for certain financial liabilities, fair value movements
will be presented in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income to the extent those

changes relate to the Group’s own credit risk.

Although earlier application of this standard is permitted, the Technical Committee of the Ministry of
Commerce and Industry of Kuwait decided on 30 December 2009, to postpone this early application ull further
nouce.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 replaced LAS 11 Revenues and provides 4 new control-based revenue recognition model using five-step
approach to all contracts with customers.

The five steps in the model are as follows:

Identfy the contract with the customer

Identfy the performance obligations in the contract

Determine the transaction price

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts
Recognise revenue when {or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The standard includes important guidance, such as

¢ Contracts involving the delivery of two or more goods or services — when to account separately for the
individual performance obligations in a multiple element arrangement, how to allocate the transaction
price, and when to combine contracts
* timing — whether revenue is required to be recognized over time or at a single point in ume
* varable pricing and credit risk — addressing how to treat arrangements with variable or contingent (e.g.
performance-based) pricing, and introducing an overall constraint on revenue
time value — when to adjust a contract price for a financing component
e specific issues, including —
o non-cash consideration and asset exchanges
O contract Costs
o rights of return and other customer options
o supplier repurchase options
o wartanties
o principal versus agent
o licencing
o breakage
o non-refundable upfront fees, and
o consignment and bill-and-hold arrangements.

The Group’s management has yet to assess the impact of IFRS 15 on these Group consolidated financial

statements
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4 Changes in accounting policies {continued)
4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contibution of Assets between and an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture - Amendments

The Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financizal Statements and IAS 28 [nvestments in Associates and

Joint Ventures {2011) clarify the treatment of the sale or contnbution of assets from an investor to its associate
or joint venture, as follows:

e require full recognition in the investor's financial statements of gains and losses ansing on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations)

® require the partial recogmition of gains and losses where the assets do not constitute a bustness, L.e. a
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint
venture.

These requirements apply regardless of the legal form of the transacuon, e.g. whether the sale or contribuuon of
assets occurs by an investor transferring shares in an subsidiary that holds the assets (resulting in loss of control
of the subsidiary), or by the direct sale of the assets themselves.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s consolidated financtal
statements.

{FRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations - Amendments

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements require an acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in which the
activity constitutes a business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinadons) to apply all of the business
combinations accountng principles in IFRS 3 and other IFRSs, except for those principles that conflict with the
guidance 1n IFRS 11. Tt also requires disclosure of the information required by IFRS 3 and other IFRSs for
business combinations.

The amendments apply both to the initial acquisition of an interest in joint operation, and the acquisiion of an
additional interest in a joint operation {in the latter case, previously held interests are not remeasured). The
amendments apply prospectively to acquisitions of intetests in joint operatons.

{FRS 16 Leases

The new Standard requires lessees to account for leases 'on-balance sheet' by recogmsing a 'nght of use' asset
and a lease liability. It will affect most companies that report under IFRS and are mvolved in leasing, and wall
have a substantial impact on the financial statements of lessees of property and high value equipment. For many
other businesses, however, exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value assets will reduce the

impact.

The Group’s management has yet to assess the mnpact of IFRS 16 on these Group consolidated financial
statements.
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4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative — Amendments
The Amendments to IAS 1 make the following changes:

®  Materiality. The amendments clarify that (1) information should not be obscured by aggregaung or by
providing immatertal information, (2} materiality considerations apply to the all parts of the financial
statetnents, and (3) even when 2 standard requires a specific disclosure, materiality considerations do
apply.

o Statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and profit or loss and other comprebensive income: The
amendments (1} introduce a clarification that the list of line items to be presented in these statements
can be disaggregated and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these
statements and (2) clanfy that an enuty's share of other comprehensive income of equity-accounted
associates and joint ventures should be presented in aggregate as single line itemns based on whether or
not it will subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss.

®  Noter. The amendments add addinonal examples of possible ways of ordering the notes to clarify that
understandability and comparability should be considered when determining the order of the notes and
to demonstrate that the notes need not be presented in the order so far listed in paragraph 114 of IAS
1. The IASB also removed guidance and examples with regard to the idendfication of significant
accounting policies that were percetved as being potenually unhelpful.

These amendments ate not expected to have any matenal impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

IAS 16 and 1AS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation -
Amendments
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and LAS 38 Intangble Assets address the following

matters:

¢ adepreciation method that i1s based on revenue that is generated by an activity that includes the use of
an asset is not appropriate for property, plant and equipment.

® an amorusation method that is based on the revenue generated by an acuvity that includes the use of an
intangible asset 1s generally inappropriate except for limited circumstances.

e expected future reductions in the selling price of an item that was produced using an asset could
indicate the expectation of technological or commetcial obsolescence of the asset, which, in turn, might
reflect a reduction of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s conseclidated financial

staterments.

IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements - Amendments

The Amendments to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements permit investiments in subsidiaries, jomt ventures
and associates to be opuonally accounted for using the equity method in separate financial statements,

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 'Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception -
Amendments
The Amendments are aimed at clanfying the following aspects:

o Excemption from preparing consolidated financial statements. The amendments confirm that the exemption from
prepanng consclidated financial statements for an intermediate parent entty 1s avalable to a parent
entity that 1s a subsidiary of an investment entity, even if the investment entty measures all of its
subsidiaries at fair value.

o A subsidiary proveding services that relate to {he parent's investment actiities. 2\ subsidiary that provides services
related to the parent's investment activitics should not be consolidated if the subsidiary itself 1s an
investment entity.

o Application of the equity method by a nen-investnient entily investor lo an invesiment enttly investe:. When applying
the equity method to an associate or a joint venture, a non-investment entity investor in an investment
entity may retain the fair value measurement applied by the associate or joint venture to its interests in
subsidiarnes,

o Disclosures required. An investment enuty measuring all of us subsidiartes at fair value provides the
disclosures relating to investment entities required by IFRS 12,

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvernents to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycie

(i) Amendments to IFRS 5 - Adds specific guidance in IFRS 5 for cases in which an entity reclassifies an asset
from held for sale to held for distribution or vice versa and cases in which held-for-distribution accounting is
discontinued

(i) Armendments to IFRS 7 - Addivonal guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract 15 continuing involvement
in a transferred asset, and clarification on offsetting disclosures in condensed interim financial statements

(iif) Anendments to IAS 19 - Clarify that the high quality corporate bonds used in estimaung the discount rate for
post-employment benefits should be denominated in the same currency as the benefits to be paid

(iv) Amendments to LAS 34 - Clarify the meaning of 'elsewhere in the interim report' and require a cross-reference.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s consohdated financial
statements.



Noor Financial investment Company - KPSC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2015

Kuwait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

5 Summary of significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies and measurement basis adopted in the preparadon of the consolidated
financtal statements are summarised below:

5.1 Basis of consolidation

The Group consolidate financial statements those of the Parent Company and all of its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries
are all entittes {including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group 15 exposed to, or has rights to, varable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the enuty. All subsidiaries have a reporung date of 31
December. The details of the significant subsidiaries are set out in MNote 7 to the consolidated financial

statements.

All transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation, including unrealised
geins and losses on transacuons between Group compaanies. Where unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales
are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from a group perspective.
Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaties have been adjusted where necessary 10 ensure
consistency with the accounung policies adopted by the Group.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Profit or loss and other comptehensive income of substdiaries acquired
or disposed of during the year are recognised from the date the Group gains control, or until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary as applicable.

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the poruon of a subsidiary’s profit or loss and
net assets that is not held by the Group. The Group attributes total comprehensive income or loss of
subsidiaries between the owners of the parent and the non-controlling interests based on their respective
ownership interests. Losses of subsidiary are attmbuted to the non-controlling interests even if that results 1n a

deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
*  Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
¢ Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;
¢ Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in consolidated statement of changes in
equity;
¢ Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;
* Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;
¢ Recognizes any surplus or deficit in consolidated statement of profit or loss;
® Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income to consolidated statement of profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group has directly disposed of the related assets
or habilities,

5.2 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration
transferred by the Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group, which includes the
fair value of any assct or liability arising from a contngent consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs ate
expensed as incurred. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree either at fair value or ar the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

[f the business combination is aclueved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity Interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through consolidated statement

of profit or loss.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.2 Business combinations (continued)

The Group recognises identfiable assets acquired and liabilities assutned in a business combination regardless of
whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements prior to the acquisition.
Assets acquired and habulities assumed are generally measured at their acquisidon-date fair values.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilivtes assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertnent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be asset or
liability will be recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either mn consolidated statement of profit or loss or as
charge to consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it will not be remeasured until it is finally settled within consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is calculated as the excess of the
sum of a) fair value of consideration transferred, b} the recognised amount of any non controlling interest in the
acquiree and ¢} acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquiree, over the acquisition-date
fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of identfiable net assets exceed the sum calculated above,
the excess amount (1e. gain on a bargain purchase) is recogmsed in consolidated statement of profit or loss
immediately.

5.3 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not individually
identified and separately recognised. See note 5.2 for information on how goodwill is initially determined.
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Refer to note 5.13 for a description of
impairment testing procedures.

5.4 Investment in associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert significant influence but which are neither
subsidiaries nor joint ventures. Investments in associates are initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method. Any goodwill or fair value adjustment attributable to the Group’s share
in the associate is not recognised separately and is included in the amount recogmsed as wmvesunent in
as50ciates.

Under the equity method, the carrying amount of the investment in associates is increased or decreased to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate, adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies of the Group.

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions berween the Group and 1its associates and joint ventures are
climinated to the extent of the Group’s interest in those entities. Where unrealised losses are climunated, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment.

The share of results of an associate is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Thus is
the profit attributable to equiry holders of the associate and therefore is profit after tax and non-controlling
interests in the subsidiaries of the associate.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.4 Investment in associates (continued)

The financtal statements of the associates are prepared esther to the reporting date of the Parent Company or to
2 date not eatlier than three months of the Parent Company’s reporting date, using consistent accounting
policies. Adjustments are made for the effects of significant transactions or events that occur between that date
and the date of the Group’s consolidated financial statements,

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it 15 necessary to recognise an additional
impairment loss on the Group’s investment 1n us associate. The Group determunes at each reporting date
whether there 1s any objecuve evidence that the investrnent in the associate is impaired. If this is the ease the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount under separate heading in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any differences between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal are recognised in
the conschidated statement of profit or loss.

5.5 Segment reporting
The Group has four operating segments: Investments, Real Estate, IT services and Hotel Operations. In

identifying these operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s service lines representing its
main products and services. Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each requires different
approaches and other resources.

For management purposes, the Group uses the same measurement policies as those used in its consolidated
financial statements. In addition, assets or liabilities which are not directly attributable to the business activities

of any operating segment are not allocated to a segment.

5.6 Revenue
Revenue arises from rendering of services, investing activities and real estate actvities. It is measured by

reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when payment is made. The following specific recognition criteria
should also be met before revenue is recognised.

5.6.1 Rendering of services
The Group earns fees and commission income from a diverse range of asset management, investment banking,
custody and brokerage services provided to its customers. Fee income can be divided into the following two

categories:

o Fee income earned from services that are provided over a ceriain period of time
Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees include
commission income and asset management, custody and other management fees.

o Fer fncome from providing iransaction services

Fees arising for rendering specific advisory services, brokerage services, equity and debt placement transactions
for a third party or arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transacuon for a third party
are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
5.6 Revenue (continued)
5.6.2 Renral income

The Group earns rental income from operating leases of its investment properties. Rental income is recognised
on a straight-line basts over the term of the lease.

5.6.3 Interest income
Interest income 15 recognised on a time proportion basis using effective interest method.

5.6.4 Revenue from sale of investment properties

Revenue from sale of investment properties is recognised on completion of sale contract and after transferring
the risk and rewards associated with the investments property to the purchaser and the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured.

5.6.5 Dividend income
Dividend income, other than those from investments in associates, is recognised at the time the right to receive

payment 15 established.

5.6.6 Revenue from hotel operations
Revenue from hotel operations includes hotel services revenue, food and beverage and room revenue.

Room revenue is recognised on the rooms occupied on a daily basis and food and beverage and other related
sales are accounted for at the ttime of sale and other related services are recognised on the performance of the
service.

5.6.7 Revenue from IT services
Revenue from IT services represent IT related services and sale of IT related products. Revenue from services
are recognised in the period in which the services are rendered and revenue from sale is recognised on delivery

of goods to customer.

5.7 Operating expenses
Operating expenses are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or

at the date of their origin.

5.8 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisiion, construction or producuon of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred and reported in finance costs.

5.9 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. The
Group depreciates its equipment using the straight-line method ar rates sufficient to write off the assets over
their estimated useful economic lives. The residual value, useful ves and methods of depreciation ate reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate at each financial year end.

510  Incangible assets
Idenufiable non-monetary assets acquired in a business combination and from which future benefits are

expected to flow are treated as intangible assets,
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

510 Intangible assets (continued)
Intangible assets which have a finite life are amortized over their useful lives. Intangible assets of the Group
comprise of Indefeasible Rights of Use (IRL}.

IRU are the rights to use a portion of the capacity of a terrestnal or submarine transmission cable granted for a
fixed period. IRUs are recognised at cost as an asset when the Group has the specific indefeasible nght to use
an 1dentfied porton of the underlying asset, generally optical fibres or dedicated wave length bandwtdth and the
duration of the nght is for the major part of the underlying asset’s economic life. They are amortsed on a
straight line basis over the shorter of the expected period of use and the life of the contract which ranges
between 10 to 15 years.

511  Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, and are accounted for

using the fair value model.

Investment properties are imtially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently, investment
properties are re-measured at fair value on an individual basis based on valuations by independent real estate
valuators and are included in the consolidated statement of financial position. Changes in fair value are taken to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investment properties are de-recognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrswn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any
gains or losses on the retrement or disposal of an investment property are recogmused in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at
the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to the date of change in
use.

512  Investment in jointly controlled assets

[nvestment in jointly controlled assets are accounted for under the method of proportionate consolidation
whereby the Group recognises its interest in assets, liabilities, income and expenses relating to the assets on a
line-by-line basis and classified according to their nature.

513  Impairment testing of goodwill and non- financial assets

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level, Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from synergies of the related business combination and represent the lowest level within the
Group at which management monitors goodwill.

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the Group’s management as
equivalent to its operating segments) are tested for impairment at least anaually.

All other individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable,
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513  Impairment testing of goodwill and non- financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit's catrytng amount
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. To determine
the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from the asset or each cash-generaung unit
and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used
for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Group's latest approved budget, adjusted as
necessary to exclude the effect of future reorganisations and assets enhancements. Discount factors are
determined individually for each asser or cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment of
respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific risk factors.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated o that
cash-generating unit. Any remaining impatrment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit. With the excepuon of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

5.4 Financial instruments

15.14.1 Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured inivally ac fair value adjusted by wansactions costs,
except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured iniually at fair value. Subsequent
measurement of financial assets and financial Liabilities are described below.

All *regular way’ purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date 1.e. the date that the
entity commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of financial asset or part of group of similar financial assets) 1s
derecognised when:

* rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired;

¢ the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass through’ arrangement; and
either

(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asset; or
() the Group has neither transferred nor retained substandally all risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its nghts to recetve cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantally all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvemnent. In that case, the Group also recogmses an associated lLabihty. The transferred asset and the
associated hability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligauons that the Group has retained.
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5.14  Financial instruments (continued)

15.14.1 Recognition, initial mmeasuremenr and derecognition (continued)

A financial liability 15 derecognised when the obhgation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing Liability are substantally modified, such an exchange or modification i1s treated as a
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new habulity, and the difference in the respective
cartying amounts 15 recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

5.14.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon

initial recogniton:

* loans and receivables
* financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
* available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets.

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting
date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets 1s
impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are apphed for each category of financial assets, which are
described below.

All significant ncome and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in consolidated statement of
profit or loss are presented, under separate headings in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

o  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables arc non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is

immaterial.

Individually significant receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when other
objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default. Recetvables that are not considered to be
individually impaired are reviewed for impairment in groups, which are determined by reference to the industry
and region of a counterparty and other shared credit nisk characteristics. The impairment loss estimate 1s then
based on recent historical counterparty default rates for each identified group.

In addition, in accordance with Central Bank of Kuwait instructions, a minimum general provision 1s made on
all applicable credit facilities (net of certain categories of collateral) that are not provided for specifically.

The Group categorises loans and receivables into following categories:

»  Cash and bank balances and short term deposits
Cash on hand and demand deposits are classified under cash and bank balances and deposits placed with

financial institutions with a maturity of less than one year are classified as short term deposits.

o Murababa investmenis| recetvables
Murabaha is an Islamic transaction nvolving the purchase and immediate sale of an asset at cost plus an agreed

profit. The amount due is settled on a deferred payment basis.
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514  Financial instruments (continued)

5.14.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)

o Murabaha mvestments | recetvables (continued)

When the credit risk of the transacuon is attributable to a financial mstitution, the amount due under Mutabaha
contracts 1s classified as a Murabaha investment. Whereas, when the credit risk of transaction is attributable to
counterparties other than banks and financial insttutions, the amount due is classified as Murabaha receivable.

Mutabaha receivables which anse from the Group’s finanang of long-term transactions on an Islamic basis are
classified as Murabaha receivables originated by the Group and are carried at the principal amount less
provision for credit risks to meet any decline in value. Third party expenses such as legal fees, incurred in
pranting a Murabaha are treated as part of the cost of the transaction.

All Murabaha receivables are recognized when the legal right to control the use of the underlying asset is
transferred to the customer.

o Wakals investments

Wakala 1s an agreement whereby the Group provides a sum of money to 2 financial institution under an agency
arrangement, who invests it according to specific conditions in return for a fee. The agent is obliged to return
the amount in case of default, negligence or violation of any terms and conditions of the Wakala.

o | pans and advances
Loans and advances are financial assets onginated by the Group by providing money directly to the borrower
that have fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an active market.

o Rextvables and other financial assets

Trade receivables are stated at original invoice amount less allowance for any uncollecuble amounts. An
estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are
wrtten off as incurred.

Loans and recetvables which are not cateporised under any of the above are classified as “other
: g Y
receivables/other assets”.

o Financial assets at FVTPL
Classification of investments as financial assets at FVTPL depends on how management monitors the
performance of these investments. Investments at FV'TPL are either "held for trading” or "designated" as such

on tnitial recognition.

The Group classifies investments as trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or are a
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short term profit taking, When they are not classified as held for trading but have
readiy available reliable fair values and the changes in fair values are reported as patt of consolidated statement
of profit or loss, they are as designated at FVTPL upon inital recognition.

Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique where no acnve marker exists,
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5.14  Financial instruments (continued)

5.14.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)

e AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivauve financial assets that are either designated to this category or do not

quaiify for mclusion in any of the other categories of financial assets.

Financial assets whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Impairment charges are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. All other AFS financial assets are
measured at fair value. Gains and losses are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and reported within the fair value reserve within equity, except for impairment losses,
and foreign exchange differences on monetary assets, which are recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss. When the asset 1s disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity reserve
to consoldated statement of profit or loss and presented as a reclassification adjustment within consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset available for
sale or a group of financial assets available for sale is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as
financial assets available for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the equity investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ 1s evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its onginal cost. Where there 1s
evidence of impairment, the cumulatve loss is removed from consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Reversals of impairment losses arc recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive incorne, except for financial assets that are debt secuniies which are recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss only if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised.

5.14.3 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilides include borrowings, due to banks and accounts payable and other liabilines. The
subsequent measurement of financial liabilides depends on their classification.

The Group classifies all its financial liabilities as “financial liabilities other than ar fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL).

»  Financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit or loss(FVTPL)
These are stated at amortised cost using effective interest rate method. The Group categorises financial kabilines

other than at FVTPL into the following categories:

o Berrowings

All borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecogrused as well
as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) amorusation process.

o ¥akalz payables
Wakala payables represent borrowings under Islamic principles, whereby the Group receives funds for the
purpose of financing its investment activities and are stated at amotused cost.
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5.14  Financial instruments (continued)

5.14.3 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial Habilities (Continued)

o [jara finanang
[jara finance payable ending with ownership is an Islamic financing arrangement through which a financial
insutution provides finance to purchase an asset by way of renting the asset ending with transferring its
ownership. This yjara finance payable 1s stated at the gross amount of the payable, net of deferred finance cost.
Deferred finance costs are expensed on a ume apportionment basis taking into account the borrowing rate
attributable and the balance outstanding,

. crounts payables and other financial Gabilities

Liabilities ate recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services recetved, whether billed by
the supplier or not, and classified as trade payables. Financial lisbilities other than at FVTPL which are not
caregonised under any of the above are classified as “other labiltties”

Allinterest-related charges are included within finance costs.

5.14.4 Amortised cost of financial instruments
This 15 computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. The caleulation takes
into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral

part of the effective interest rate.

5.14.5 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financtal assets and financial habilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if, there is 2 currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basts, to realise the assets and sette the habilities simultaneously.

5.14.6  Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments that are waded in active markets at each reporting date 1s determined by

reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotadons (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuaton
techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current
fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation

models,
An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are provided
in Note 30.3.

5.15  Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued and paid up.

Share premium includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transacuon costs associated with
the issuing of shares are deducted from share premium.

Statutory and voluntary reserves comprise appropriations of current and prior period profits in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies’ Law and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association.
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5,15  Equity, reserves and dividend payments (continued)

Other components of equity include the following:

*  foreign currency translation reserve — comprises of foreign currency translaton differences arising from the
translation of financial statements of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries and associates into Kuwait Dinar
(KD).

*  Curnulative changes n fair value reserve — comparses of pains and losses relating to available for sale
financial assets and Group share of cumulative change in fair value of associates.

Retained earnings include all current and prior penod profit. All transactions with owners of the parent are
recorded separately within consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have
been approved in a General Assembly.

516  Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own issued shares that have been re-acquired by the Group
and not yet resssued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method. Under this
methaod, the wetghted average cost of the shares re-acquired 1s charged to a contra account in equity.

When the treasury shares are reissued, gains are credited to a separate account in equity, (the “gain on sale of
treasury shares reserve”), which is not distributable. Any realised losses are charged to the same account to the
extent of the credit balance on that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then to the
voluntary reserve and statutory reserve. No cash dividends are paid on thesc shares. The issue of stock dividend
shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average cost per share without
affecting the total cost of treasury shares.

5.17  Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an ouiflow of economic resources will be required from the Group and amounts can
be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may stilt be uncertain.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the
present obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelhood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated staternent of financial positon, but are disclosed when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent babilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financal position, but are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits ts remote.

518  Foreign currency translation

5.18.1 Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statemenis are presented in Kuwmt Dinar (KD), which s also the functional
currency of the Parent Company. Each entity in the Group determines 1ts own functional currency and iems
included in the financial staternents of each entity are measured using that funcuonal currency.
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5.18  Foreign currency translation (continued)

5.18.2 Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the respective Group entity, using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the re-measurement of monetary items
denominated in foreign currency at year-end exchange rates are recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated
using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

Translation difference on non-monetary asset classified as, “fair value through profit or loss” is reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and “available for sale” is reported as
part of the cumulative change in fair value reserve within consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

5.18.3 Foreign operations
In the Group’s financial statements, all assets, liabilities and transactions of Group entities with a functional
currency other than the KD are translated into KD upon consolidation. The functional currency of the entities

in the Group has remained unchanged during the reporting period.

On consolidation, assets and Habilities are translated into KD at the closing rate at the reporting date. Goodwill
and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated into KD at the closing rate. Income and expenses have been translated into IKD at
the average rate over the reporting period. Exchange differences are charged/credited to consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve in
equity. On disposal of a foreign operation, the related cumulative translation differences recognised in
consolidated statement of changes in equity are reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss and are
recognised as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

519  End of service indemnity .

The Parent Company and its local subsidiaries provide end of service benefits to its employees. The entitlement to
these benefits is based upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a
minimum service period in accordance with relevant labour law and the employees’ contracts. The expected costs
of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. This kability, which is unfunded, represents the
amount payable to each employee as a result of termination on the reporting date.

With respect to its Kuwaiti national employees, the Group makes contributions to the Public Institution for Social
Security calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s obligations are limited to these
contributions, which are expensed when due.

5,20  Taxation

5.20.1 National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

NLST is calculated in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance Resolutions No. 24 of
2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit of the Group. As per law, allowable deductions include, share of profits of listed
associates and cash dividends from listed companies which are subjected to NLST.
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5.20 Taxation {continued)

5.20.2 Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The contribution to KKFAS is calculated at 1% of taxable profit of the Group in accordance with the modified
calculation based on the Foundation’s Board of Directors’ resolution, which states that income from Kuwaiti
shareholding associates and subsidiaries, and transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for the

year when determining the contribution.

5.20.3 Zakar
Conuribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Group in accordance with the Ministry of Finance

resolution No. 58/2007 effective from 10 December 2007,

5.20.4 Income taxes
Income tax payable on profits is recognized as an expense in the period in which the profits arise based on the
applicable tax laws and tax rates in each jurisdiction that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of statement of financial position date.

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences, at the statement of
financial position date, between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. Deferred tax provisions depend on whether the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference can be controlled and whether it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of statement of financial position date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, including carry-forward of unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utlised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of
financial position date and reduced to the extent that it is not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

5.21 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank
balances, short-term deposits and short term highly liquid investments maturing within three months from the
date of inception less due to banks and blocked bank balances.

5.22  Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value and the cost is determined according to the

weighted average method.

5.23 Fiduciary assets
Assets held in a teust or fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the Group and, accordingly, they are not

included in these consolidated financial statements.
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6 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent habilities, at the end of the reporting period. However uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset or liability affected in future periods.

6.1 Significant management judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following significant
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements:

6.1.1.  Classification of financial instruments
Judgements are made in the classification of financial instruments based on management’s intention at
acquisition. Such judgement determines whether it is subsequently measured at cost, amortised cost or at fair
value and if the changes in fair value of instruments are reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
or consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Group classifies financial assets as held for trading if they are acquired primarily for the purpose of short
term profit making,

Classification of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss depends on how management monitors the
petformance of these financial assets. When they are not classified as held for trading but have readily available
fair values and the changes in fair values are reported as part of profit or loss in the management accounts, they
are classified as fair value through profit or loss.

Classification of assets as loans and receivables depends on the nawre of the asset. If the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive market and the intention is to receive fixed or determinable payments
the financial asset is classified as loans and receivables.

All other financial assets are classified as available for sale.

6.1.2  Classification of real estate

Management decides on acquisition of a real estate whether it should be classified as trading, property, and
equipment or investment property. Such judgement at acquisiion determines whether these properties are
subsequenty measured at cost less depreciation and impairment, cost or net realisable value whichever is lower
or fair value and if the changes in fair value of these properties are reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss or consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Group classifies property as trading property if it is acquired principally for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

The Group classifies property as property and equipment if it is acquired with the intention of owner
occupation or being developed for owner occupation.

The Group classifies property as investment property if it is acquired to generate rental income ot for capital
appreciation, or for undetermined furure use.

6.1.3  Contol assessment
When determining control, management considers whether the Group has the practical ability to direct the
relevant acuvites of an investee on its own to generate returns for itself. The assessment of relevant activities

and ability to use its power to affect variable return requires considerable judgement.
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6 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty
(continued)
6.2 Estimates uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be substanally

different.

6.2.1 Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Esumating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

6.2.2 Impairment of non financial assets (intangible assets)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication or objective evidence of impairment or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required. If any such indication or evidence exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and an
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. During the year ended 31 December 2015, impairment loss recognised
for intangible assets amounted to KID2,010,441 (2014: Nil) (see note 20).

6.2.3 [Impairment of associates

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize any
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associates, at each reporting date based on existence of any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this 15 the case the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognizes the amount in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. During the year ended 31 December
2015, impairment loss recognised for investment in associate amounted to KID389,136 (2014: KD 111,473) (see

note 18).

6.2.4 Impairment of available for sale investments

The Group treats available for sale equity investments as impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires considerable judgment. In addition, the Group
evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted entities and the future cash flows
and discount factors for unquoted entites.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, impairment loss recognised for available for sale investments
amounted to 8,252,823 (2014: KID8,671,511) (see note 17).

6.2.5 Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group’s management reviews periodically items classified as loans and receivables to assess whether a
provision for impairment should be recorded in the consclidated statement of profit or loss. In particular,
considerable judgement by management is required in the esumation of amount and tming of future cash flows
when determining the level of provisions required. Such estimates are necessanly based on assumptions about
several factors involving varying degrees of judgement and uncertainty. During the year ended 31 December
2015, impairment loss recognised for loans and receivables amounted to KID322,927 (2014: KID1,436,255).
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6 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty
(continued)
6.2 Estimates uncertainty (continued)

6.2.6 Fair value of financial instruments

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments where active
market quotes are not available. This requires management to develop estimates and assumptions based on
market inputs, using observable data that market participants would vse in pricing the insttument. Where such
data is not observable, management uses its best estimate. Estimated fair values of financial instruments may
vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

6.2.7 Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The Group engaged independent valuation specialists to determine fair
values and the valuators have used valuation techniques to arrive at these fair values. These estimated fair values
of investment properties may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction

at the reporting date.

6.2.8 Impairment of inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become old or obsolete, an
estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed
on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are
assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the inventory type and the degree of ageing or
obsolescence, based on historical selling prices.

7 Subsidiary companies

7.1 Details of the Group’s material consolidated subsidiaries as of the reporting date are as follows:

Country of Proportion of
- registration \
Subsidiary ownership interest \
and place Nature of business
. held by the Group
of business
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
Noor Telecommunication Company - KSCC Kuwait 49.11% 49.11%  Telecommunications and IT Services
{though the Group holds 49.11% of the
subsidiary, the Group exercises control over
the subsidiary based on majority board
members)
Noor Al Salhiya Real Estate Co.- KSCC Kuwait 73.32% 100% Real estate and related activities
Neoor Kuwait Holding - KSC (Holding) Kuwait 99.53% 99.53%  Invesiment and relaled activities
Kuwaiti Indian Holding Company - KSCC Kuwait 56.58% 56.59% Investment and related aclivities
Noar GCC Islamic Fund Kuwait 93.34% 92.38% Investment and related activities

Hotels Global Group Company - PSC Jordan 100% 100% Hospitality
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7 Subsidiary companies (continued)

7.2 Subsidiaries with matersal non-conirolling interesis

The Group includes three subsidiaries, with material non-controlling interests (NCI):

Proportion of

ownership
interests and
Name voting rights
held by the NCI
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
Yo %
Kuwaiti Indian Holding Company -
KSCC (KIHC) 43.41% 43.41%
Noor Telecommunication Company-
KSCC, (NTEL) 50.89% 50.89%
Noor Salhiya Real Estate Company-
KSCC (NSRE) 26.68% -

individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non- controlling interests

Profit/{loss) allocated to NCI

Accumulated NCI

31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014 2015 2014
KD KD KD KD
2,310 68,600 2,435,625 4,165,197
{3,242,147) {647,292) 11,788,400 13,294,796
506,759 - 5,394,927 -
(48,674) (288,329) 826,207 919,795
(2,781,752) (867,021) 20,445,159 18,379,788

Summarised financiail information for the above subsidiartes, before intra-group eliminations, is set out below:

KIHC NTEL NSRE
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
KD KD KD KD KD KD
Non-current assets 194,867 235,002 27,877,631 32,863 441 22,141,166 16,341,385
Current assets 5,746,502 9,668,644 7,314,573 7,270,483 3,911,899 3,028,016
Total assels 5,941,369 9,903,646 35,192,204 40,133,924 26,053,065 19,369,401
Non-current liabilities 1,429 633 7,491,004 380,858 16,420 8,606
Current liabilities 339,502 308,400 5,890,983 14,965,657 5,817,211 4,627,362
Total liabilities 340,931 309,033 13,381,987 15,346,515 5,833,631 4,635,968
Equity attributable to owners
of the Parent Company 3,164,813 5429416 10,021,817 11,492,613 14,824,507 14,733,433

Non-controlling interests

(including NCI of the sub

subsidiary) 2,435,625 4,165,197 11,788,400 13,294 796 5,394,927 -
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7 Subsidiary companies (continued)

7.2 Subsidiartes with material non-conlrolling interests (continued)

KIHC NTEL NSRE
31 Dec. 31 Dec 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
KD KD KD KD KD KD

Total income 138,986 427 326 13,585,702 11,955,802 2,569,855 2,015,671
Profit/{toss) for the year 35,828 230,272 (6,196,913) (1,362,570) 1,916,226 1,462,087
Total other comprehensive
incomef{loss) for the year {49} 121,267 3,142,581 238,010 (80,225) -
Total comprehensive

income/{loss) for the year 35,779 351,539 {3,054,332) (1,124,560} 1,836,001 1,462,087
-attributable to owners of the

Parent Company 33,469 198,930 (1,547,937} {598,310) 1,350,835 1,462,087

-attributable to NCI 2,310 152,608 {1,506,395) (526,250) 485,166 -
Net cash flow {used in)/from
operating aclivities (63,087) 299,971 {149,474) (488,807) {1,077,139) 285,672
Net cash flow from /{used in)
investing activities 669,773 4,681,349 68,475 {2,548,427) (4,088,317) (1,218,447)
Net cash flow (used in)/from
financing activities {1,732,854) (3,932,248) (859,932) 1,119,070 4,891,600 3,705,000
Net cash {outflow)/inflow {1,126,168) 1,049,072 (940,931) (1,918,164) {273,856) 2,772,225

7.3. Acguisition of subsidiaries

7.3.1.  During the previous year, one of the Group’s local subsidiaries acquired 6G0% equity stake in Cable Sat
Satellite Service Company, a Kuwait Limited Liability Company (engaged in renting and sale of indefeasible
right of use) and the acquisition was accounted in accordance with IFRS 3 as follows:

Total consideration

Value of non-controlling interests

31 Dec.
2014

KD

2,511,200
637,847

Less : Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

Cash and bank balances
Trade and other receivable
Intangible assets

Trade and other payable

3,145,047

916

46,305
8,325,996
{5.224,170)

Total identifiable net assets

3,149,047

Goodwill

The purchase price allocation was finalized in 2015 based on renegotiation of acquisition terms as disclosed in

note 201.3.
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7 Subsidiary companies (continued)

7.3 Acguisition of subsidiaries (continued)

7.3.2 For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows the net cash outflow of Cable Sat during 2014

were as follows:

Cable Sat
2014
KD
Total consideration (2,511,200)
Less: Consideration due 1,504,655
Less: Bank balance of subsidiary on acquisition 916
Net cash outflow (1,005,629)
8 Cost of sales and services and General, administrative and other
expenses
a} Cost of sales and services include staff cosis of KID5,831,874 (2014: KID5,452,865).
b) General, administrative and other expenses include the following:
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec
2015 2014
KD KD
Staff costs 2,388,219 3,102,117
Depreciation and amortization 173,277 221,122
Other expenses 2,512,716 1,828,949
5,075,212 5,152,188

Number of staff employed by the Parent Company as at 31 December 2015 was 42 (31 December 2014: 50).

9 Interest and other income
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2015 2014

KD KD
Interest income 28,405 109,690
Income from murabaha and wakala investments 8,723 10,485
Income from future trade customers 281,222 350,889
Reversal of impairment provision on amount due from Ultimate Parent Company (16.1) 2,188,996 -
Other income 53,842 569,048
2,561,188 1,040,112




—

Noor Financial Investment Company - KPSC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2015

Kuwait

36

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

10 Net gain/(loss) on financial assets
10.1) Net gain/(Joss) on financial assets, analysed by category, is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec
2015 2014
KD KD
Loans and receivables
- Interest on cash and bank balances and short term deposits 28,405 108,690
- Profit from murabaha and wakala investment 8,723 10,485
- Income from future trade customers 281,222 350,889
- Impairment in value of accounts receivable {322,927} (1,436,255)
- Reversal of impairment provision on amount due from Ultimate Parent Company 2,188,996 -
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
- Net (loss)/gain on held for trading (820,937) 1,545,342
- Net gain on designated as such on initial recognition 164,301 16,140
Available for sale investments
- recognisec] dir.ectly in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other (705,179) 112,638
comprehensive income (net)
- recognised directly in consolidated statement of profit or loss
on sale and dividend income 1,734,273 1,159,496
- recycled from equity to consolidated statement of profit or loss
on impairment (8,252,823) (8.671,511)
on sale 1,557,548 1,957,674
(4,138,398) (4,845,412)
Distributed as follows:
Net gain recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
-Realized gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss 550,494 1,154,046
-Unrealized loss on investments at fair value through profit or toss (1,607,280) (151,889)
-Realized gain on sale of available for sale investmenis 1,557,548 1,957,674
-Dividend income 2,134,423 1,718,821
-Impairments in value of accounts receivable (322,927) (1.436,255)
-Impairments in value of available for sale investments {8,252,823}) (8,671,511)
-Others (part of interest and other income) 2,507,348 471,064
Net gain recognised In the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (705,179) 112,638
(4,138,398) (4,845 412)

10.2 Unrealised loss on investments at fair value through profit or loss

This represents the difference between closing market value at the end of the year and carrying value at the

beginning of the year and/or cost of investments acquired during the year.

11 Finance costs

Finance costs relate to borrowings from banks and other financial institutions which are financial liabilities

stated at amordsed cost.
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12 Basic and diluted earnings per share
Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Parent
Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec
2015 2014
KD KD
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Parent Company 1,333,267 918,814
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 413,162,761 413,162,761
Less: Weighted average number of treasury shares (10,359,065) {10,359,065)
402,803,696 402,803,696
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Fiis) 3.31 2.28

13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows are made up as follows:
Effective annual interest/
profit rates

31 Dec. 31 Dec 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014 2015 2014
Kb KD
Cash and bank balances 0.25% - 0.62% 0.25%-0.50% 7,737,506 8,137,702
Short term deposits 0.62%-1.35% 0.62%-1.356% 2,613,255 1,570,220
10,350,761 9,707,922
Less: Due to banks 5.5%-6.0% 3.87%-7.5% {2,016,195) (1,508,363)
Less: Blocked balances {325,066) (1,729,541)
Less: Short term deposits maturing after 3 months s (224,117)
Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated
statements of cash flaws 8,009,500 6,245,901

Cash and bank balances include call accounts which earn interest. The short term deposits mature within three
months and are placed with local banks.

Due to banks represent bank overdraft facilities unilised by subsidiary and are secured by short term deposits as
at 31 December 2015 of KD970,545 {31 December 2014: KID970,545).

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances of KID1,194,334 (31 December 2014: KID 1,235,992) which are
designated for the purpose of payment on account of capital reduction of two subsidianes.

14 Murabaha & wakala investments
Effective annual interest/
profit rates

31 Dec. 31 Dec 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014 2015 2014
KD KD
Placed with local Islamic banks 1.13% 0.5% 1,000,000 598,354
Due from a local Islamic investment company 14,324,160 14,324,160
Provision for impairment in value (14,324,160} {14,324,160)

1,000,000 598,354
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14 Murabaha & wakala investments (continued)
No profit was recogmzed on impaired Wakala investment during the current year (2014: Nil).

Wakala investments of KID14,324,160 (31 December 2014: KD14,324,160) placed with a local Islamic
investment company matured in the last quarter of 2008. The mvestee company defaulted on settlement of
these balances on the maturity date. However revised maturity dates were supulated by the court. The mvestee
company ng:un defaulted the payment of 2nd and 3rd mstalment due in June 2014 and 2015 respecuvely. Full
provision is made for receivable in accordance with the Central Bank of Kuwait provision rules.

During the previous years, the Group assumed the financial and legal obligations on wakala nvestments of
KID9,968,250 (in violation of the Commercial Companies Law of 1960) that the Group had placed with the
zbove investment company in a fiduciary capactty under a wakala agreement with certain related parties, despite
having no such obligation under the wakala agreement. The Group has initiated legal proceedings against the
parties to recover the amount including profits thereon. During the year 2014, the Court of Appeal has ordered
the related parties to pay KD 8,285,000 with 7% of profit thereon to the Group which has been overturned by
the Court of Cassation in favor of the related party duning the current year. The legal proceeding relaung to the
remaining amount of KD 1,683,250 is still in process.

15 Investments at fair value through profit or loss
31 Dec. 31 Dec
2015 2014
KD KD
Held for trading:
Quoted shares 9,334,848 17,372,642
- Local 5,265,476 12,548,333
- Foreign ) 4,069,372 4.824.309
Designated on initial recognition:
-Ungquoted foreign shares 2,364,343 -
11,699,191 17,372,642

In 2008 as 2 result of significant developments in the global financial markets, the Group had reclassified
investments from “fair value through profit or loss” category to “available for sale” category. The fair value of
the remaining re-classified investments as of 31 December 2015 was KDD11,058,126 (2014: KD20,552,366)

(note 17).
Quoted shares with a fair value of KD1,131,470 {2014: KID7,546,813) are secured against bank loans {refer note
22)

16 Accounts receivable and other assets
31 Dec. 31 Dec.

20156 2014

KD KD
Financial assets:
Accounts receivable 4,352,489 3,111,645
Due from the Ultimate Parent Company (net of discount and provision) 3,784 55,837
Due from other related parties 1,101,764 80,484
Due from investment brokerage companies 1,698,255 2124189
Due from future trade customers 4,845,544 5,250,261
Due on sale of foreign investment properties (net) (note 16.2) 972,085 937,715
Accrued income 937,446 1,333,508
Other financial assels 1,111,222 1.107.273

15,022,589 14,000,912

Non-financial assets:
Other assets _ 24_3.326 29_2 153

15,266,515 14,203,065
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16
16.1

16.2

16.3

17

Accounts receivable and other assets (Continued)

During the year 2012, the Parent Company and the Ultimate Parent Company (along with certain of its
subsidiaries) entered into a settlement agreement to parually settle the outstanding balance due to the
Parent Company by way of transfernng the shates of an unlisted local entity (previously held as security)
for a consideration of KID13,800,000 based on an independent valuation. The shares are classified as
avatlable for sale investments. Under the terms of the settlement agreement, the remaining balance of
approximately KID2,200,000 (which was provided for in a previous year) was due to be settled, by the
Ultmate Parent Company, contingent upon the value of the unlisted shares upon occurrence of lLiquidity
event {L.¢ sale or public listing) of the shares on or before 31 December 2014 or 1f no Liquidity event occurs
by then based on a valuanon to be performed of the shares as of 31 December 2014, Accordingly, the
Parent Company obtained an independent valuation of the shares as of 31 December 2014 which
established that the remaining balance of approximately KID2,200,000 was due to be settled by the
Ultmate Parent Company. Consequently, the Parent Company has reached an agreement with the
Ultimate Parent Company to settle the due balance by way of wransferring the shares of a special purpose
vehicle which owns shares in a listed foreign enuty. Accordingly, the provision of KID 2,188,996 pertaining
to the remaining balance has been recognized under other income during the year. The investment
transferred by the Ulumate Parent Company has been included under investment at fair value through
profit or loss and an unrealized gain of KD 164,301 has been recogmsed in the consolidated statemnent of
profit or loss on fair valuing the investment.

The consideration due on sale of the Group’s investment property in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
amounting to KI312,404,655 (sold during 2011} was due in instalments. Out of the consideration due, as
of 31 December 2015 an amount of KID972,083 i1s outstanding and the Group’s management expects thar
it will be settled during 2016,

During the year, the Group recognised an impairment loss of KID322,927 (2014: KID1,436,255) against

certain accounts receivable.

Available for sale investments
31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2015 2014
KD KD

Quoted shares 13,926,441 23,952,288

- Local

- Foreign

12,013,402 21,257,418
1,913,039 2,694,870

Ungquoted shares 23,372,486 26,226,411

- Local

- Fareign

7,886,209 9,583,457
15,486,277 16,642,944

Foreign funds 6,690,840 8,028,730

43,989,767 58,207,419

17.1

Available for sale investments include investments in unquoted shares and foreign funds whose fair
values cannot be reliably determined and as a result investments with a carrying value of KID2,835,639
(2014: KID3,000,542) are carried at cost or cost less impairment. The Group’s management is not aware
of any circumstance that would indicate impairment in value of these investments.
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17 Available for sale investments (continued)

17

v

Quoted shares with a fair value of KID8,783,999(2014: KDD18,175,068) and unquoted shares with a fair

value of KD6,600,000 {2014: KI8,300,000) are secured against bank loans (refer note 22).

17.3  During the year, the Group recognised an impairment loss of KD2,797,488 (2014: KD75,839) for certain
local and foreign quoted shares, as the market value of these shares declined sigmificantly below their
cost. Further the Group also recogrised an impatwment loss of KID5,455,335 (2014: KD8,595,672)
against certain unquoted shates, local and foreign funds based on independent valuations, estimate and

the net asset values reported by the investment managers at the reporung date.

17.4  Quoted shares with a carrying value of KID11,058,126(2014: KD20,552,366) represent investments which
were transferred from investments at fair value through profit or loss as of 1 July 2008 (refer note 15).

18 Investment in associates
This represent the Group share’s of following associates using the equity method.

Country of
Registration
& principal
place of Percentage of
Associates business ownearship
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
Meezan Bank Limited Pakistan 49.11% 49.11%
National Tamouh GTC Company — WLL Kuwait 50.00% 50.00%
Al Raya Global Real Estate Company Jordan 50.00% 50.00%
DL‘}U:-I:- Ir:latlonal Combined Real Estate Company - Kuwait 50.00% }

Movements of the investments in associates during the year are as follows:

Mature of business

Islamic Banking
Real Estate Developments
Real Estate Developments

Real Estate Developments

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KD KD
Balance at 1 January 50,294,896 39,865,645
Additions during the year 50,000 367,754
Disposal of associate - (137,553)
Share of results 7,165,450 9,842,763
Share of other comprehensive income/{loss) of associates 258,420 (523,481)
Impairment in value of associate (389,136) {111,473)
Dividend received (3,883,071} (2,480,549)
Foreign currency translation adjustment {420,332) 3,471,790

Balance at the end of the year 53,076,227 50,294,896
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18 Investment in associates (continued)

181 Summarsed financial informaton in respect of Group’s materal associate (Meezan Bank Limited) 1s
set out below. The summansed financial informadon below represents the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the associate {and not the Group’s share of those amounts) adjusted for
differences in accounting policies between the Group and the associates.

18.1.1.  Meesan Bank Limited,

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2015 2014

KD KD
Total assets 1,553,054,278 1,289,545,066
Total liabilities {1,469,784,838) (1,212,287,093)
Equity altributable to shareholders of Meezan Bank 83,269,440 77.257,973
Revenue 95,955,112 53,308,158
Profit for the year 14,887,381 22,460,382
Other comprehensive income for the year 511,168 (1,108,546)
Tatal comprehensive income for the year 15,398,549 21,351,838
Dividends received from the associate during the year 3,883,071 2,480,549
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in Meezan Bank 49.11% 49.11%
Group share in Meezan Bank's net assets 40,893,622 37,941,390
Goodwill 9,181,367 9.261,687
Carrying value of Group's ownership interest in Meezan Bank 50,074,989 47,203,077

As at 31 December 2015 the fair value of the Group’s mterest in Meezan Bank Limited, which is Listed on the
Pakistan Stock Exchange was KD 65,289,895 (2014: KID67,660,542), based on the quoted market price available
on that exchange, which is a level 1 input in terms of IFRS 13.

Share of results of associates includes KD 418,541 (2014: KID4,035,124), which represents the Group's share of
gain on bargain purchase recognised by Meezan Bank Limited. This has been designated as distributable only
for stock dividends with prior approval of the regulator in Pakistan.

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material to the Group;

31 Dec. 31 Dec
2015 2014
KD KD
Group share of results for the year 190,102 (764,197)
Group share of total comprehensive income 189,404 (764,197)
Aggregate carrying value of the group interest in associates 3,001,238 3,081,819
18.2 Group’s share of associate’s contungent liabilities:
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KD KD
Guarantees 17,931,421 20,454,293
tLetters of credit 47,563,376 35,420,246
Cormmitments in respect of forward exchange contracts 203,352,545 164,048,894
Commitment for the acquisition of operating fixed assels 418,505 39,598
Commitment in respect of financing 151,710,297 124,299,823
Bills for collection 44,268,373 29.741.313
465,244,517 374,004,167
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19 Investment properties
The movement in investment properties 15 as follows:
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KD KD
Fair value as at 1 January 32,840,512 28,604,121
Acquisition of properties 1,905,599 4,931,859
Developments and construction costs 1,769,789 -
Reclassification from property & equipment (19.5) 2,280,290 -
Disposals - (1,800,000}
Changes in fair value 959,509 1,104,532
39,755,699 32,840,512

19.1

[nvestment properties comprise of lands and buildings in the following countries:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KD KD
Kuwait 39,325,000 32,425,450
Jordan 430,699 415,062
39,755,699 32,840,512
19.2 Investments properties amounting to KID9,535,000 (2014: KD?9,432,000) and KD13,188,000 (2014:

19.3

19.4

19.6

K139,350,000) are secured against bank loans and Tjara Financing facilities respecuvely (refer note 22).

At 31 December 2015, the Group re-valued its properties based on lower of two independent valuations.
(Refer note. 30.4 for further details relating to fair values).

The above investment properties include jointly controlled investment properties with a carrying value of
KD8,852,000 (31 December 2014: KID7,013,450) which are partly financed from Ijara financing
arrangement arranged by joint owner (related party).

During the year, one of the subsidiaries of the Group has transferred one of its buildings with a carrying
value of KID 2,280,290 from owner occupied property to investment properties based on the change in
use as it was rented out during the year. The fair value of the property as per the independent valuation
obtained as of the transfer date approximates the transfer value.

During the year, borrowing cost of KID263,003 (2014 : KID279,584) has been capitalised to investment
properties under development.
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20 Goodwill and Intangible assets
20.1 Goodwill

The movement in Goodwill 1s as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KD KD
At the beginning of the year 2,029,278 1,990,375
Adjustments - 38,903
At the end of the year 2,029,278 2,029,278

Goodwill represents the excess of cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair valuve of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidianies. Goodwill has been allocated to the IT service
business of the Group as that 1s the cash generating unit (CGU) which is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the business combination. It is also the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for impairment purposes.

Impairment testing

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an esumaton of
the recoverable amount of the CGUs to which these items are allocated. The recoverable amount is determined
based on higher of value-in-use calculattons or fair value less cost to sell.

Management used the following approach to determine values to be assigned to the following key assumptions
in the value in use calculations

Key assumption  Basis used to determine value to be assigred to key assumption

Growth rate  Antcipated average growth rate of 5% (2014: 10%) per annum. Value assigned reflects past
experience and changes in economic environment.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period have been extrapolated using a growth rate of 3%
(2014: 3%). This growth rate does not exceed the long term average growth rate of the market
in which the CGU operates.

Discount rate  Discount rates of 16.9% (2014: 22%}. Discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis by varying these input factors by a reasonably posstble margin
and assessing whether the change in input factors result in any of the goodwill allocated to appropriate cash
generating units being impaired. Based on the above analysis, there are no indications that goodwill included tn
any of the cash generating units is impaired.
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20 Goodwill and Intangible assets (continued)

20.2  Intangibie assets — Indefeasible right of use (IRU)

Intangible asset comprises of indefeasible right of use (TRU) to a telecommunication asset arising from a

substdiary acquired during 2014 and the movement is as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2015 2014

KD KD
Cost
At the beginning of the year 8,325,996 -
Addition due to acquisition of a subsidiary (Refer Note 7.3.1) - 8,325,996
Reduction in the cost due to re-negotiation of the ferms {2,684,655) -
Impairment in value during the year (2,010,441) -
Balance at the end of the year 3,630,960 8,325,996
Accumulated amortization
At the beginning of the year {40,614) L
Charge for the year (22,189) {40,614)
At the end of the year (62,803) (40,614)
Net book value at the end of the year 3,568,087 8,285,382
Total goodwill { note 20.1) and intangible assels 5,597,375 10,314,660

20.3 Dunng the current year the subsidiary re-negotiated the financial and other terms of its use and,
accordingly, as per the new contractual terms, its carrying value and that of the related liability has reduced by
KID2,684,655 and KD2,604,655 respectively. Consequently, based on the informauon avaiable, the Group’s
management has recognised an impairment of KD2,010,441 which includes, net cancellatton charges of
KD456,239 related to the previous contract.

21 Accounts payable and other liabilities
31 DPec. 31 Dec

2015 2014

KD KD
Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable 993,012 1,553,664
Payable on acquisition of subsidiary (note 7.3.2) 1,504,655 1,504,655
Payable on acquisition of intangible assets (refer 20 3)* 540,000 3,504,000
Accrued interest 49,552 12,064
Accrued expenses 2,256,948 1,177,184
Dividend payable 15,554 16,379
Other payables 983,591 844,002
Due to related parties 62,000 84,813
Payable on account of capital reduction in subsidiary (Note 26.3.2) 1,193,641 1,235,316

7,568,953 9,932,077

All above financial liabilities are non-interest bearing. The carrying values of the above liabilines approxinate

their fair values.

* The payable on acquisition of intangible assets includes KID90,327 which was due in last quarter of 2015 nad

remaining amount of KD449,673 in first half of 2016,
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22 Borrowings from banks and other financial institutions

Effective interest/

cost rate (p.a.%) Security
31 Dec. 31 Dec
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 2015 2014
2015 2014 KD KD
Short term
liara Financing — Kuwaiti Dinar 4.5 4.5 Secured 4,325,000 3,125,000
Loan Payable — Kuwaili Dinnar 4.5 45  Secured 1,080,000 1,080,000
5,405,000 4,205,000
Long term
Loans payable — Kuwaiti Dinar 35-3.75 32535 Secured 73,508,000 81,857,500
Wakala payable — Kuwaiti Dinar 35 325 Secured 27,500,000 33,000,000
ljara financing — Kuwaiti Dinar 4.5-5.0 4550 Secured 5,485,284 6,064,582
106,493,284 120,722,082
111,898,284 124,927,082

221 During 2011 and 2012, the Parent Company restructured its financing arrangements with some local
banks and accordingly loans amounting to KID154,710,000 (out of which KID53,702,000 has been paid
tll reporting date and KID4,314,250 subsequent to the reporting date) were converted into secured long
term facilities. As per loan restructuring agreements, these loans are required to be 100% secured. As of
31 December 2015, these are partly secured (notes 15,17 and 19) and the identification and securnitization

of the required balance is still in process.

The third instalment of the loan of KD38,677,500 fell due in 2014 and 2015 and the lenders agreed for
payment of 50% of that amount within four months from the original due date. KDD15,024,500 was paid

in 2015 and the balance KID4,314,250 has been settled in 2016.

The Parent Company has outstanding loans of KID101,008,000 as of the reporting date out of which
KD4,314,250 was settled subsequent to the reporting date and the process of rescheduling loans
amounting to KID96,693,750 comprising of the remaining 50% (KD19,338,750) of the third instalment

and KID77,335,000 for the final instalment is ongoing,

The Parent Company had submitted a debt rescheduling plan to all 1ts lenders and had, also requested
from all of the lenders to extend the standstill as the restructuring is still in process and to continue
negotiations to reach an acceptable debt rescheduling sclution. Subsequent to the reportng date, the
lenders have confirtmed that they will continue to negotiate the terms and conditions of the restructuring
to bring it to a successful closure. Accordingly, the Parent Company’s management expects to finahize

the debt rescheduling within the next few months.
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22 Borrowings from banks and financial institutions (continued)

222 ljara financing contracts amounting to KD9,810,284 (31 December 2014: KID9,189,582) are secured by
investments properties (Note 19} (31 December 2014: investments properties and property and
equipment of KID2,200,000).

223 Long term loans and wakala amountng to KID101,008,000(31 December 2014: KID114,675,500) are
secured by investment at fair value through profit or loss (note 15), available for sale investments (note
17} and investment properties (note 19) and against shares of two unlisted subsidianies of the Parent

Company.

224  The above loans are due as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KD KD
Short term ljara Financing 4,325,000 3,125,000
Short term loans 1,080,000 1,080,000
Long term loans and Wakaia payable
- Current portion due within one year 5,689,375 15,024,375
- Due after more than one year 95,318,625 99,633,125
Long term ijara financing
- Current portion due within one year 861,283 870,886
- Due after more than one year 4,624,001 5,193,696
111,898,284 124,927,082

225 The fair value of the short term financing including the current portion of long term borrowings equals
their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting s not significant. The fair value of the long term
financing of the Parent Company amounted to KID94,152,633 (2014: KID98,812,605) with carrying value
of KID95,318,625 (2014: KID99,633,125). The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate
based on the borrowing rate of 4.5% (2014: 4.5 %o} and are within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

23 Share capital and share premium

23.1.  The authorised, 1ssued and paid up share capital of the Parent Company as at 31 December 2015 comprise
of 413,162,761 shares of 100 Fis each (31 December 2014: 413,162,761 of 100 Fils each) fully paid up in

cash.

Share premium 15 not available for distribution

(5% ]
i
I3
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24 Treasury shares
The Group holds treasury shares as follows:

31 Dec. 3 Dec

2015 2014

Nurmber of shares 10,359,065 10,359,065
Percentage of issued shares 2.51% 251%
Market value (KD} 481,697 973,752
Cost (KD) 3,410,573 3,410,573

Reserves equivalent to the cost of treasury shares held are not distributable. The treasury shares are not held as
collateral against any financial liability.

25 Legal and voluntary reserves

In accordance with the Companies Law and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the Parent
Company’s profit before KFAS, Zakat, NLST and directors’ remuneration for the year is to be transferred to
legal reserve. The Parent Company may resolve to discontinue such annual transfer when the reserve totals 50%
of the paid up share capital. No transfer is required in a year in which the Parent Company has incurred a loss
or where accumulated losses exist.

Dhstribution of the legal reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of a dividend up to 5%
of paid-up share capital to be made in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for the distribution of a
dividend of that amount.

{n accordance with the Parent Company's Articles of Association, a certain percentage of the Parent Company’s
profit before KFAS, Zakat, NLST and directors’ remuneration, is to be transferred to the voluntary reserve at
the diseretion of the Board of Directors which is to be approved at the General Assembly. No transfer is
required in a year in which the Parent Company has incurred a loss or where accumulated losses exist. For the
year 2015, Board of Directors proposed to transfer 10% of the above mentioned profit to the voluntary reserve
and this is subject to approval of General Assembly of shareholders. There are no restrictions on distribution of

voluntary reserve.

26 Cumulative changes in fair value, foreign currency translation reserve
and Non-controlling interests

26.1  Cumulative changes in fair value

Year ented Year ended

31 Dec. 31 Dec
2015 2014
KD KD

Balance at 1 January 6,009,404 6,540,895
Other comprehensive income:
Net changes in fair value of available for sale investments {7,716,915) (6,225,759)
Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on dispesal of

available for sale of investiments (1,557,548) (1,957.674)
Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on impairment

in value of available for sale investments 6,855,123 8,175,423
Share of other comprehensive incomei(loss} of associates 258,420 (523,481)
Other comprehensive loss for the year (2,160,920} (531,491)

Balance at 31 December 3,848,484 6,009,404
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26 Cumulative changes in fair value, foreign currency translation reserve

and Non-controlling interests (Continued)

26.2  Foreign currency translation reserve

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec
2015 2014
KD KD
Balance at 1 January (9,637,538) (13,218,472)
Reallocation of non-contrelling interest (Note 26.3.3) - 73,815
(9,537,538) (13,144,657}
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences arising from translation of foreign subsidiaries 150,331 136,329
Exchange difference arising on translation of foreign associates {420,332) 3,471,790
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year {270,0401) 3,607,119
Balance at 31 December (9,807,539) (9,537,538)
26.3 Non-conurolling interests
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec
2015 2014
KD KD
Balance at 1 January 18,379,788 20,125,598
Amounts due to non-controfling interest on reduction of share
capitalfredemption of units of subsidiaries {1,750,661) {4,049,078)
Increase in non-controlling interest of subsidiary during the year . 2,500
Non-controlling interest arising on acquisition of a subsidiary - 637,847
Increase in non-controlling interests of subsidiary during the year §,107,562 -
Acquisition of non-controfling interest - {804,484)
Decrease of non-controlling interest on sale of subsidiary - {B,655)
Reallocation from retained earnings (note 26.3.3) - 3,222,443
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest by a subsidiary (200,400) -
Transactions with non-controlling interests 3,156,501 (999,437)
Loss for the year {2,781,752) (867,021}
Other comprehensive incoms :
- Net change in fair value of available for sale investments 316,461 (375,440}
-Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on impairment in
value of available for sale investments 1,397,700 496 088
-Share of foreign currency translation reserve (23,5639) -
Total other comprehensive income for the year 1,690,622 120,648
Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,091,130) (746,373)
Balance at 31 December 20,445,159 18,379,788
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26 Cumulative changes in fair value, foreign currency translation reserve
and Non-controlling interests (Continued)

26.3.1. Acquisition of non-controlling interests
During the previous year, the Group acquired the entire sharcholding held by non-controlling interests (34.44%)
with respect of National Drilling and Petroleum Services KSCC for a consideration of KID727,996 resulting in a

gain of KID76,498 which has been recognized in equity.

26.3.2 Capital reduction by subsidiaries

On 1 September 2015, the shareholders of one of the subsidiaries of the Group, (Kuwait Indian Holding
Company - KSCC) decided to further decrease its share capital by K1D4,000,000 out of which KID1,731,882
pertains to non-controlling interests. After completing its necessary formalities an amount of KD1,726,223
including prior capital reduction (31 December 2014: KID3,932,248) has been paid to non-controlling interests

and the balance amount is shown under accounts payable and other liabilities.

Further an amount of KD896,047 (2014: KDD943,381) is due to non-controlling interest on the decrease in the
share capital by Noor Telecommunication Company KSCC during 2012 and it included under accounts payable

and other liabilides.

26.3.3 During the previous year, the Group reallocated an amount of KID3,222 443 to non-controlling interests
from retained earnings and foreign currency translation reserve of the Parent Company which represents
accumulated impact of the misallocation of non-controlling interest’s share of profit in previous years. This
mainly arose from the full elimination of intergroup profits that a partally owned subsidiary earned on a
murabaha investment with the Parent Company.

26.3.4 During the year one of the subsidiaries of the Group (Noor Al-Salhiya Real Estate Company KSCC)
increased its share capital from KD11,000,000 to KID15,000,000 (40,000,000 shares with a par value of 100 fils
and premium of 10 fils per each share). The Parent Company did not subscribe for this increase and
consequently the Parent Company’s shareholding in this subsidiary diluted from 100% to 73.32%. The
proportionate carrying value of net assets on the date of dilution amounting to KD5,107,562 relating to non-
controlling interests has been transferred to non-controlling interest in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Consequently the difference between cash proceeds received and non- controlling interests share of net
assets on the date of dilution amounting to KD707,562 has been recognized as a dilution loss in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity as of 31 December 2015.

27 Dividend distribution and Directors’ remuneration
Subject to the requisite consent of the relevant authorities and approval from the general assembly, the Parent
Company’s Board of Directors propose not to make any distributions (2014: Nil).

The shareholders of the Parent Company at the Annual General Meeting held on 27 May 2015 approved the
directors’ proposal to distribute a total amount of KD24,000 as remuneration to the Board of Directors for the
year ended 31 December 2014, which has been recorded as expense during the current year ended 31

December 2015.
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28 Segment analysis (continued)

Geographical Segments
The geographical segments are as follows:
Profit/{loss} before taxes Assets Liabilities
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
KD KD KD KD Kb KD
Domestic and GCC (3,998,603) (7.222,475) 102,717,925 119,680,018 121,414,253 136,134,972
Others 2,586,902 7,300,219 83,297,704 80,892,948 662,020 758,793
{1.411,701) 77,744 186,015,629 200,572,966 122,076,273 136,893,765

29 Related party transactions

Related parties represent the Ultimate Parent Company, associates, directors and key management personnel of
the Group, and other related parties such as subsidiadies of the Ultimate Parent Company (fellow subsidiaries),
major shareholders and companies in which directors and key management personnel of the Group are
principal owners or over which they are able to exercise significant influence or joint control. Pricing policies

and terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management.

Significant related party transactions and balances included in the consolidated financial statements are as

follows:
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KD KD
Consolidated statement of financial position:
Due from related parties and Ultimate Parent Company (refer note 16)
-Due from Ultimate Parent Company 3,784 55,837
-Due from associates 166,730 34,281
-Due from other related party 935,034 46,203
-Accrued income and management fees 680,063 782,251
Due to related parties (refer note 21) 62,000 84,813
Transactions with related parties
Acquisition of invesiment property - 1,280,500
Transfer of investments at fair value through profit or loss 2,200,042 -
Investments in related parties
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 926,163 1,442,385
Available for sale invesiments 5,591,016 6,649,636
Consolidated statement of profit or loss
Management and placement fees
- eamned from Ultimate Parent Company 8,634 761
- earned from other related parties 4,288 1,468
Reversal of provision for impairment on receivable from Ultimate Parent Company (note
16.1) 2,188,996 -
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:
Short term employee benefits 240,708 317,448
End of service benefits = 18,919
240,708 336,367

Total key management compensation
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30 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair value
measurement

30.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities as stated i the consolidated statement of

financial position may also be categorized as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KD KD
Loans and receivables (at amortised cost):
¢« Cash and bank balances 7,737,506 8,137,702
e  Short term deposits 2,613,255 1,570,220
+« Murabaha and wakala investments 1,000,000 598,354
*  Accounis receivable and other assets {note 16) 15,022,589 14,000,912
g 26,373,350 24,307,188
Investments at fair value through profit or loss: (note 15)
+ Held for trading 9,334,848 17,372,642
* Designated on initial recagnition 2,364,343 .
11,699,191 17,372,642
Available for sale investments {note 17)
e At fair value 41,154,128 55,206,877
s At cost/ cost less impairment (refer note17.1) 2,835,639 3,000,542
43,989,767 58,207,419
Total financial assets 82,062,308 99,887,249
Financial liabilities (at amortised costs) :
s  Due o banks (note 13} 2,016,195 1,508,363
» Accounts payable and other liabilities (note 21) 7,568,953 9932,077
*  Borrowings from banks and other financial institutions (note 22) 111,898,284 124,927,082
121,483,432 136,367,522

30.2  Fair value measurement

Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to wansfer a hability 1n an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Group measures financial mstruments
such as investments at fair value though profit or loss and available for sale investments (excluding certain
available for sale investments which are carnied at cost/cost less impairment for reasons specified in Note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements) at fair value and measurement details are disclosed in note 30.3 to the
consolidated financial statements. In the opmion of the Group's management, except for certain long term
borrowing (refer note 22) the carrying amounts of all other financial assets and habilities which are carried at
amortised costs are considered a reasonable approximation of their fair values,

The Group also measures non-financial assets such as investment properties at fair value at each annual
reporting date (refer 30.4).
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30 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair value
measurement (continued)

30.3  Fair value hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are grouped into
three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of sigrificant mputs
to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in actve markets for identical assets or liabilides;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or labality,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {1.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs).

The level within which the asset or lLability is classified is determined based on the lowest level of siguficant
input to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets and liabilines measured at fair value on a recurning basis in the statement of consolidated
financial position are grouped mnto the fair value hierarchy as follows:

31 December 2015 Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

KD KD KD KD

Financial assets at fair value:
Investments at fair value through profit or loss

-Quoted shares a 9,334,848 - - 9,334,848
-Unquoted shares c - 2,364,343 - 2,364,343
Available for sale investmenls
-Quoted shares a 13,064,544 861,897 - 13,926,441
-Unquoted shares c - 14,268,132 7,911,930 22,180,062
-Faoreign funds b - 5,047,625 - 5,047,625
Total assels 22,399,392 22,541,997 7.911,930 52,853,319
31 December 2014 oo Note Leveld Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD KD

Financial assels at fair value:
Investments at fair value through profit or loss

-Quoted shares a 17,372,642 - - 17,372,642
Available for sale investments

-Quoted shares a 23,952,288 - - 23,952,288

-Unquoted shares c - 15,131,582 9,656,130 24.787,712

-Foreign funds b - 6,466,877 - 6,466,877
Total assets 41,324,930 21,598,459 9,656,130 72,579,519

There have been no other transfers between level 1 and 2 during the reporting period other than disclosed
below.

Measurement at fair value

The Group’s finance team performs valuavons of financial instruments for financial reporung purposes,
including Level 3 fair values, in consultadon with third party valuation specialists for complex valuadons, whete
required. Valuation techniques are selected based on the characterisucs of each instrument, with the overall
objective of maximising the use of market-based information,
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30 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair value
measurement (continued)

30.3  Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Measurement at fair value {continued)

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair values, are unchanged compared to
the previous reporting year, except for certain restncted quoted shares that have been fair valued based on
valuation techniques as the Group’s management believes that such valuations are more representative of the fair
values of such investments based on the information available to the management. Accordingly these investments
have been included under level 2.

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of measunng fair value are as follows:

Financial instruments in level 1 and 2

a) Quoted shares (level 1)

Quoted shares represent all listed equity secunties which are publicly traded in stock exchanges. Where quoted
prices in an active market are avatlable, the fair value of such investments have been determined by reference to
their quoted bid prices at the reporting date (Level 1) and if the market for a investment is not active, the Group
has established fair value by using valuation techniques.

Financial instruments in level 2 & 3

b) Foreign funds (level 2)

The underlying investments of foreign funds primarily comprise of foreign quoted and unquoted securities.
Information for these investments is limited to periodic financial reports provided by the investment managers.
These mvestments are carried at net asset values reported by the investment managers. Due to the nature of
these investments, the net asset values reported by the investment managers represent the best estimate of fair

values available for these investments.

¢) Unquoted shazes (level 3)

The consolidated financial statements include holdings in unlisted securities which are measured at fair value.
Fair value is estimated using a discounted cash flow model or other valuaton technique which includes some
assumptions that are not supportable by observable market prices or rates.

Level 3 Fair value measurements
The Group’s financial assets classified in level 3 uses valuation techniques based on significant inputs that are
not based on observable matket data. The financial instruments within this level can be reconciled from

beginning to ending balances as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2015 2014

KD KD
As at 1 January 9,656,130 20,874,776
Changes in fair value during the year recognised in other comprehensive income 83,924 1,210,027
Transfer to level 1 and 2 - (6,928,673)
Transferred from investments carried at cost 246,265 -
Impairment loss recognised in the profit or loss {2,074,389) (5,500,000}

As at 31 December 7,911,930 9,656,130
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30 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair value
measurement (continued)

30.3  Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Level 3 Fair value measurements {continued)
The following table provides information abour the sensitvity of the fair values measurement to changes in the

most significant unobservable mputs:
gn P

31 December 2015
Financial asset  Valuation Range
technique Significant {weighted Sensitivity of the fair value

unobservable input average} measurement to the input

Unquoted Shares DCF Method Long lerm growth rate for
cash flows for subsequent Higher the growth rate, higher
years 5.8% the fair value.

Higher the WACC, lower the fair
WACC 14.5% value,
Discount for lack of Higher the discount rale, lower
marketability 15% the value.
31 December 2014
Financial asset  Valuation Range
technique Significant (weighted Sensitivity of the fair value

unobservable input average) measurement to the input

Unguoted Shares DCF Method  Long term growth rate for
cash flows for subsequent Higher the growth rate, higher
years 2%-3.5% the fair value

Higher the WACC, lower the fair

WACC 12.7% value.
Discount for lack of Higher the discount rate, lower
marketability 15% the value.

The impact on profit or loss and other comprehensive income would be immaterial if the relevant risk variable
used to fair value the level 3 investments were changed by 5%.

Discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Group has determined that market
participants would take into account these premiums and discounts when pricing the tnvestments.

In case of AFS assets, the impairment charge in the consolidated statement of profit or loss would depend on
whether the decline is significant or prolonged. An increase in the fair value would only mmpact equity (through
consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income} and, would not have an effect on
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

30.4 Fair value measurement of non-financial assets

The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of non-financial assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis at 31 December 2015:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD KD
Investment properties
-Buildings in Kuwait - - 28,723,000 28,723,000
-Properties under development in Kuwait - - 10,602,000 10,602,000
-Land in Jordan - - 430,699 430,699

. - 39,755,699 39,755,699
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30 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair value
measurement (continued)

30.4 Fair value measurement of non-financial assets {continued)

The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of non-financial assets measured at fair value on 2
recurring basis at 31 December 2014:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD KD
Investment properties
-Buildings in Kuwait - - 24 112,000 24,112,000
-Land in Kuwait - - 8,313,450 8,313,450
-Land in Jordan - - 415,062 415,062

32,840.512 32,840,512

The above buildings represent rental properties on frechold land categorized as “Investment Lands™ (i.e land
which can be used to construct multiple residential unit buildings, commercial units apartments, vills, Duplex
and Studios), in Kuwait. The frechold land above also represents land categorized as investment lands. The Fair
value of the investment property has been determined based on valuations obtained from two independent
valuators, who are specialised in valuing these types of investment properties. The significant inputs and
assumptions are developed in close consultation with management. One of these valuator is a local bank (for
local investment properties) who has valued the investment properties using prmarily two methods, one of
which 1s the yield method and other being a combination of the markel comparison approach for the land and
cost minus depreciation approach for the buildings. The other valuator who is a local reputable valuator has also
valued the investment properties primarily by using a combination of the methods noted above. When the
market comparison approach is used adjustments have been incorporated for factors specific to the land in
question, including plot size, location and current use. For the valuation purpose, the Group has selected the
lower value of the rwo valuations (2014: lower of two valuations). Further information regarding the ievel 3 fair
value measurements 15 set out in the table below:

31 December 2015

Significant Range of Relationship of
unobservable unobservable  unobservable inputs to
Description Valuation technique inputs inputs fair value
Building on Yield method and Market
freehold land — comparison approach for  Estimated marker The higher the price per
Kuwait (rentai land & cost less price for land (per KD1,473- square meter, the higher
properties) depreciation for buildings  sgm) KD8,857 the fair value
Construction cost KD59-KD264 The higher the construction
(per sqm) cost per square meter, the
higher the fair value
Average monthly KD2.46- The higher the rent per
rent (per sgm) KD9.02 square meter, the higher
the fair value
Yield rate 4.86% to 7.2%  The higher the yield rate,
the lower the value
Vacancy rate 10% The higher the vacancy
rate the lower the fair value
Freehold land — Market comparison Estimated market KD1,574 1o The higher the price per
Kuwait and approach price for land (per KDB8,350 square meter, the higher

Jordan sgmy) the fair value
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30 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair value
measurement (continued)

30.4 Fair value measurement of non-financial assets (Continued)

31 December 2014
Significant Range of Relationship of
unohservahle unobservable unobservable inputs to
Description Valuation technique inputs inputs fair value
Building on Yield method and Market
freehold land - comparison approach for  Estimated marker The higher the price per
Kuwait (rental land & cost less price for land (per KD1,217- square meter, the higher
properties) depreciation for buildings  sqm) KD8,837 the fair vaiuve
Construction cost KD86-KD247 The higher the construction
{per sqm) cosl per square meler, the
higher the fair value
Average monthly KD2 46— The higher the rent per
rent (per sqm) KDB8 96 square meter, the higher
the fair value
Yield rate 5.78% to The higher the yield rate,
8.73% the lower the value
Vacancy rate 10% The higher the vacancy
rate the lower the fair value
Freehold land — Market comparison Estimated market KD1,300 to The higher the price per
Kuwait and approach price for land {per KD5,728 square meter, the higher
Jordan sgm) the fair value

Level 3 Fair value measurements
The Group measurement of investment propertes classified in level 3 uses valuauon techniques inputs that are
not based on observable market data. The movement in the investment properties is disclosed in note 19.

31 Risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings from banks and financial instituton, due to
banks and accounts payable. The main purpose of these financial liabilities 1s to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various financial assets such as accounts receivable and other assets, cash and bank
balances, short term deposits, murabaha & wakala investments and investment securities which anse directly

from operadons,

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency nisk, interest rate
nisk and price r1sk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors sets out policies for managing each of these nisks as discussed below.

The Group does not use derivative financial instruments.
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31 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

31 Market risk
The significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to are described below:

a) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency nisk 1s the sk that the fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucruate

due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group mainly operates in the Middle East and few Asians countrtes and 1s exposed to foreign currency nsk
arising from various foreign currency exposures, primarily with respect to US Dollar and Saudi Riyal. The Parent
Company’s consolidated statement of financial position ¢an be affected by the movement in these currencies.
To mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency nisk, non-Kuwaiti Dinar cash flows are monitored.

Generally, the Group’s risk management procedures distinguish short-term foreign currency cash flows (due
within twelve months) from longer-term cash flows. Foreign currency risk 15 managed on the basis of limits
determined by the Pareat Company’s board of directors and a continuous assessment of the Groups’ open
positions.

The Group's significant net exposure to foreign currency denominated monetary assets less monetary liabilities
at the reporting date, translated into Kuwaiti Dinars at the closing rates are as follows:

2015 2014
Equivalent Equivalent
KD KD
US Dollar 1,301,303 918,872
Saudi Riyal 937,931 938,473

If the Kuwaiti Dinar had strengthened against the foreign currencies by 5%, then this would have the following
impact on the results for the year. There is no other direct impact on the Group’s equity.

Impact on (loss)/profit for the

year
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KD KD
US Dollar (65,065) (45,944)
Saudi Riyal (46,897) {46,924)
{111,962) (92,868)

If the Kuwaiti Dinar had weakened against the foreign currencies assuming the above sensitivity (5%), then
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the results for the year, and the balances shown above would

be positive.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary dunng the year depending on the volume and nature of the
transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be representative of the Group’s exposure to the

foreign currency nsk.
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31 Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

311  Market risk (continued)

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk anses from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair
values of financial instruments. The Group 15 exposed to interest rate risk with respect to due to banks and
borrowings which are at floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an approprate

mix between fixed and floaung rate short term deposits and borrowings.

Posinons are monitored regularly to ensure positions are matntained within established limits.

The Group’s interest rate risk sensitvity position, based on the contractual re-pricing or maturity dates of assets

and habilities, whichever dates are earhier, is as follows:

Upto1 1-3 312 Qver12 Non-interest
At 31 December 2015 month months months months bearing items Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD
ASSETS
Cash and bank balances 10,466 - - - 7,727,040 7,737,506
Short term deposits 1,252,080 1,361,175 - - - 2,613,255
Murabaha and wakala investmenis 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
Investments at fair value through -
profit or foss - - - 11,699,191 11,699,191
Accountis receivable and other - -
assets - . 15,266,515 15,266,515
Inventories - - - - 884,878 884,878
Available for sale investments - - - - 43,989,767 43,989,767
Investment in associates - - - - 53,076,227 53,076,227
Invesiment properties - - . - 39,755,699 29,755,699
Property and equipment - - - - 4,395,216 4,395,216
Goodwill and intangible assets - - - = 5,597,375 5,597,375
2,262,546 1,361,175 - - 182,391,908 186,015,629
LIABILITIES
Borrowings from banks, other
financial institutions and due to
banks 9,205,570 4,120,320 645,963 99,942,626 - 113,914,479
Accounts payable and other
liabilities - - - 7,568,953 7,568,953
Provision for end of service
indemnity - - . 592,841 592,841
9,205,570 4,120,320 645,963 99,942,626 8,161,794 122,076,273
Total interest rate sensitivily Gap (6,943,024) (2,759,145}  (645,963) (99,942,626)
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity
gap {6,943,024) (9,702,169) (10,348,132) (110,290,758)
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31 Risk management objectives and policies {Continued)
b) Interest rate risk {continued)
Upto1 13 312 Over 12 Non-interest
At 31 December 2014 month months months manths bearing items Total
KD KD KD KD Kb KD
ASSETS

Cash and bank balances

- 8,137,702 8,137,702

Short term deposits 729,737 616,366 224 117 - - 1,570,220
Murabaha and wakala investmenis 598,354 - - - - 598,354
Invesiments at fair value through -

profil or loss - - - 17,372,642 17,372,642
Accounts receivable and other - -

assets - - 14,293,065 14,293,065
Inventories - - - - 311,100 311,100
Auvailable for sale investments - - - 58,207,419 58,207,419
Investment in associates - - - - 50,294896 50,294,896
Investment properties - - - - 32,840,512 32,840,512
Property and equipment - - - - 6,632,396 6,632,396
Goodwill and intangible assets - - - - 10,314,660 10,314,660

1,328,091 616,366 224 117 - 198,404,392 200,572,966

LIABILITIES
Borrowings from banks and financial

institutions and due to banks 1,508,363 10,757,170 9,343,083 104,826,819 - 126,435,445
Accounts payable and other liabilities - - - - 9,932,077 9932 077
Provision for end of service -

indemnity - - - 526,243 526,243

1,508,363 10,757,170 9343093 104,826,819 10,458,320 136,893,765

Total inlerest rate sensitivily Gap (180,272) (10,140,804) (9,118,976) (104,826,819

Cumulative interest rate sensitivity
gap

(180,272) (10,321,076) (19,440,052) (124,266,871)

The Group does not have any off balance sheet financial instrument which are used to manage the interest rate
risk. The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the interest bearing financial instruments on the profit/loss
for the year to a reasonable possible change in interest rates with effect from the beginmung of the year. Based
on observation of current market conditions it has been assumed that a reasonable possible change in the
interest rates would be +25 and -25 basis points for KIBOR interest rates for the current year (2014: Interest
rate +25 and -25 for basts point for KIBORY). The calculation is based on the Group’s financial instruments held
at reporting position date. All other variables are held constant. There 1s no other direct impact on Group’s

equity.

Increase in interest rates Decrease in interest rates

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014 2015 2014
KD KD KD KD
(Loss)/profit for the year (254,241) {310,667) 254,241 310,667



—

61

MNoor Financial investment Company - KPSC and Subsldiaries
Coansolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2015

Kuwvait

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

31 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

31.1  Market risk (continued)

c) Price risk

This is 2 risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether
these changes are caused by factors specific to individual instrument or 1is 1ssuer or factors affecung all
instruments, traded in the market. The Group is exposed to equity price risk with respect to its listed equity
investments which are primarily located in Kuwait, Jordan, and USA. Equity investments are classified either as
investments carred at fair value through profit or loss (including trading securities) or available for sale

securities.

To manage its price rsk ansing from investments in equity securties, the Group diversifies its portfolio.
Daiverstfication of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Group.

The price nisk sensitivity is determined at the rate of 10% on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting
date. If equity prices had been higher by 10%, the effect on the (loss)/profit for the year and equity for the year
ended 31 December would have been as follows, with all other vadables held constant:

A negative/positive number below indicates a decrease in loss or increase in equity and an increase in profit or
equity respectively, where the equity prices increase by the above mentioned percentages.

(Loss)/profit for the year Sl A T EDE T

income
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Pec
2015 2014 2015 2014
KD KD KD KD
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 933,485 1,737,264 - -
Available for sale investments
- Impaired investments (refer ) 312,744 922 655 - 481,440
- Un-impaired investments - - 2,170,775 2042398

1,246,229 2,659,919  2/170,775 2,523,838

* Had equity prices been higher by 10%, the impairment which was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profits or loss would be reduced and consequently the loss for the years 2015 and profit for the year 2014 would
be lower and higher respectively.

For a 10% decrease in the equity prices the impaired and un-impaired available for sale investment would have
increased the loss for the year by KID812,373, the investments at fair value through profit of loss and other
available for sale investments would have increased the loss for the year by KID933,485 and profit or loss and
other comprehensive income by KID1,671,146 respectively.

31.2  Credit risk
Credir risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the

other party to incur a financial loss. The Group’s credit policy and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis. The Group seeks to avoid undue concentrations of nisks with individuals or groups of customers
in specific locations or business through diversification of its activities.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at the
reporting date, as summarized below:
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31 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

31 Dec. 31 Dec
2015 2014
KD KD
Bank balances 7,732,711 8,132,433
Short term deposils 2,613,255 1,570,220
Murabaha and wakala investments 1,000,000 598,354
Accounts receivable and other assets (refer note 16) 15,022,589 14,000,912
Available for sale investments (refer note 17) 6,690,840 8.028,730
33,059,395 32,330.649

Except for the wakala investment referred to in note 14, accounts receivable and other assets referred to in note
16, and available for sale investments referred to in note 17, none of the above financial assets are past due or
impaired. The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparty, identified either
individually or by group, and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Where available at
reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/ot reports on customers and other counterparties are obtained and
used. The Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties. The Group’s management considers
that all the above financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired for each of the reporung dates under
review are of good credit quality.

None of the Group's financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

In respect of receivables, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit msk exposure to any single
counterparty. The credit nsk for cash and bank balances and short term deposits 1s considered neglgible, since
the counterparties are reputable financial institutions with high credit quality. Information on other significant
concentrations of credit risk is set out in note 31.3.

313  Concentration of assets
The distribution of financial assets and financial liabilities by geographic region is as follows:

Asia & Europe &
Kuwait GCC Africa USA Total
KD KD KD KD KD
At 31 December 2015
Cash and bank balances 7,288,996 34,144 414,366 - 7,737,506
Short term deposils 2,613,255 - - - 2,613,255
Murabaha and wakala investments 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
Investments at fair value through
profit or loss 5,265,477 2,730,622 3,581,249 121,843 11,699,191
Accounts receivable and other assets
(note 16} 13,083,498 850,205 406,357 682,529 15,022,589
Available for sale invesiments 19,899,612 1,011,850 14,637,475 8,440,830 43,989,767
49,150,838 4,626,821 19,039,447 9,245,202 82,062,308
Due to banks 2,016,195 - - - 2,016,195
Accounis payable and other liabilities 6,906,933 - - 662,020 7,568,953
Borrowings from banks and other
financial institutions 111,898,284 - - - 111,898,284

120,821,412 - . 662,020 121,483,432
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31 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

3.3  Concentration of assets (continued)

Asia & Europe &
Kuwait GCC Africa USA Tatal
KD KD KD KD KD
At 31 December 2014
Cash and bank balances 7,581,565 67,077 489,060 - 8,137,702
Short tern deposits 1,570,220 - - - 1,570,220
Murabaha and wakata investments 598,354 - - - 598,354
Investments al fair value through
profit or loss 12,548,333 2.924 410 1,828,578 71,321 17,372,642
Accounts receivable and other assets
{note 16} 11,839,028 1.018,143 837.264 306,477 14,000,912
Available for sale invesiments 30,840,874 2,029,192 14,853,453 10,383,900 58,207,419
64,978,374 6,038,822 18,108,355 10,761,698 99,887,248
Due to bank 1,508,363 - - - 1,508,363
Accounts payable and other liabilities 9,173,286 - 758,791 - 9,932,077
Borrowings from banks and financial
institutions 124 927,082 - - - 124,927,082
135,608,731 g 758,791 - 136,367,522

314  Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its liabiliues when they fall due. To limit this risk,
management has arranged diversified funding sources, manages assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors
liquidity on a daily basis.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s assets and liabilites. Except for investments
carried at fair value through profit or loss and available for sale invesunents, the maturtes of assets and
liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period from the reporung date to the contractual
maturity date.

The mamnty profile for investments carried at fair value through profit or loss, available for sale ivestrents
and ivestment properties is determined based on management’s estimate of liquidation of those investments.

Maturity profile of assets and liabilities are as follows:

At 31 December 2015 1 year Over 1 year Total
KD KD KD

ASSETS

Cash and bank balances 7,737,506 - 7,737,506
Short term deposits 2,613,255 - 2,613,255
Murabaha and wakala invesiments 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Investment at fair value throeugh profit or loss 11,699,191 - 11,699,191
Accounts receivable and other assets 15,266,515 - 15,266,515
[nventories 884,878 - 884,878
Available for sale investments 6,256,519 37,733,248 43,989,767
Investment in associales - 53,076,227 §3,076,227
Investment properties - 39,755,699 39,755,699
Property and equipment - 4,395,216 4,395,216
Goodwill and intangible assets - 5,597,375 5,697,375

.45,457.854 - 140,557,765 186,015,629
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31 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
314 Liquidity risk (continued)
At 31 December 2015 1 year Over 1 year Total
KD KD KD
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabilities 7,568,953 - 7,568,953
Due to banks 2,016,195 - 2,016,195
Borrowings from banks and other financial institutions 11,955,658 99,942,626 111,898,284
Provision for end of service indemnity - 592,841 592,841
21,540,806 100,535,467 122,076,273
At 31 December 2014
ASSETS
Cash and bank balances 8,137,702 - 8,137,702
Short term deposits 1,570,220 - 1,570,220
Murabaha and wakala investments 598,354 - 598,354
Investment at fair value through profit or loss 17,372,642 - 17,372,642
Accounts receivable and other assels 14,293,065 - 14,293,065
Inventories 311,100 - 311,100
Available for sale investmenis 14,607,782 43,599,637 58,207,419
Investment in associates - 60,294,896 50,294,896
Investment properties - 32,840,512 32,840,512
Property and equiprment - 6,632,396 5,632,356
Goodwill and intangible assets - 10,314,660 10,314,660
56,800,865 143,682,101 200,572,966
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabilities 9,932,077 - 9,932,077
Due to banks 1,608,363 - 1,508,363
Borrowings from banks and financial institutions 20,100,261 104,826,821 124,927,082
Provision for end of service indemnity . 526,243 526,243
31,540,701 105,353,064 136,893,765
The contractual maturity of financial Liabilities based on undiscounted cash flows is as follows:
Upto1 1-3 312 1-5
31 December 2015 month months months years Total
KD KD KD KD KD
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and ather liabilities - 540,000 7,028,953 - 7,568,953
Borrowings from banks and financiat
institutions including due to banks 9,207,789 5,036,932 3,342,054 103,981,829 121,568,604
9,207,789 5,676,932 10,371,007 103,981,829 129,137,557
Upto1 1-3 312 1-5
31 December 2014 month months manths years Tota
KD KD KD KD KD
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities - - 9,932,077 - 9,932,077
Borrowings from banks and financial
institutions 1,515,467 11,707,188 12,166,300 112,300,026 137,688,981
1,515,467 11,707,188 22,098,377 112,300,026 147,621,058
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32 Capital risk management
The Group’s capital sk management objectives are to ensure that the Group mamtains a strong credit raung
and healthy ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions
and nsk charactenistcs of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, buy back shares, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to

reduce debt. See note 23.

The Parent Company is required to maintain a tnintmum share capital of KID15 million as it 1s registered as an
investment company regulated by the Central Bank of Kuwait.

The capital structure of the Group consists of the following:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KD KD
Borrowings from banks and financial institutions {refer note 22) 111,898,284 124,927,082
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 13) (8,009,500} (6,245,901)
Net debt 103,888,784 118,681,181
Total equity 63,939,356 63,679,201

Consistent with others 1n the industry, the Group monutors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.

This ratto 15 caleulated as net debt divided by total equity as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2015 2014
KD KD
Net debt 103,888,784 118,681,181
Total equity 63,939,356 63,679,201
Net debt to total equity ratio 162% 186%

33 Fiduciary assets

The Group manages mutual funds and portfolios on behalf of its Ulimate Parent Company, other related
parties and outsiders, and maintains securities in fiduciary accounts which are not reflected in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial positon. Assets under management at 31 December 2015 amounted to
KIDD54,230,073 (2014: KID53,931,582) of which assets managed on behalf of its Ulumare Parent Company and
other related parties amounted to KID52,230,986 (2014: KID52,110,885).

34 Contingent liabilities and Capital commitments

Contingent Labilities
On 1 December 2011, the Parent Company’s Jordanian subsidiary, MNoor Jordanian Kuwait Financial

Investment Company Limited (“the Seller”) disposed of 115 entire equity interest in one of its Jordantan
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34 Contingent liabilities and Capital commitments (continued)

Contingent habilities {roniinued)

subsidiary (Noor Jordan Kuwait Transport Company JSCC) to nine individual buyers (“the Buyers”).
Subsequent to the transfer of shares and control to the Buyers, they have filed a case against the seller claiming
misrepresentation and seeking compensation of J194,500,000 (KI51,931,631). The subsidiary’s management and
legal advisor belteve that the favorable decision of the court 15 probable; hence, no provision for any effects
that may result has been made in the consolidated financal statements.

Guarantees and :ap:!m" camrrimenis
At the reporung date the Group had commitments of KID1,791,430 towards purchase of investments (2014:
Ki31,945,441) and guarantees amounting to KID7,296,552 (2014: KID7,311,950).

34 Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the current year. Such
reclassification does not affect previously reported ner assets, net equity, net results for the year or net increase
in cash and cash equivalents.



